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Financial Highlights and Calendar
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Financial Highlights
M HE

Year ended 31 March 2014 2013 Change
BE=ZA=1T—HLEE —E—MEF —E-=F BE
HK$°000 HK$000 %
FET FET Ealsd

(Restated)

(&%)
Revenue 6,990,463 6,394,089 9.3%

Profit attributable to equity holders RAFRESE AEGEF

of the Company 581,196 539,963 7.6%
Total assets 4,567,700 4,413,738 3.5%
Net assets 3,732,555 3,551,645 5.1%
Basic earnings per share FRERER HK$1.0158 7T HK$0.94 38 7T 7.4%
Interim and final dividends per share BRPERRERKRE HK68 cents 58l HK65 cents 7&l 4.6%
Special dividend per share BREFIRE - HK25 cents 7841l N/A T3 A
Net assets per share BREEFE HK$6.47 35 7T HK$6.1958 7T 4.5%

Financial Calendar

5B

Announcement of Interim Results 29 November 2013

H S A A A e s e v N E

Announcement of Annual Results 24 June 2014

AR SRR M R -NAEANA YA

Dividends Interim: HK17 cents per share paid on 30 December 2013
Final: HK51 cents per share payable on 25 September 2014

JBe 18, RIS mR17EA - CRZF =2 H =4 HIRA
ABIBEE © FRSTHAL - R ZFPE I A H IR

Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) 11 September 2014

JBEH AR —F-WEA+—H

Closure of Register of Members

JBe S i P

8 September 2014 to 11 September 2014 (both days inclusive)

(for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)

17 September 2014

(for determining entitlement to the final dividend)
ZECMEAANEEZZFE-IELA+—H (FRWRBFHER)
(DA SE H R B 7% T S P 4 R 5 A A% )

—F WAL LH

( DA S WO I I B B B A )
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Chairman’s Message
TR

I am delighted to report that Café de Coral, which has celebrated
its 45th anniversary, experienced a successful and productive year
in 2013. Our sustainable development strategy remained on track,
and we made good progress with steady growth in our business

performance.

During the year, we continued to refine our new Five-Year Plan, the
fifth since we began strategic planning in the early 90s. The strategic
planning process is especially critical for us as we embark on a
new phase of growth. With a strong and solid foundation in Hong
Kong, we are now gearing up for expansion in the Greater China
and reinforcing our market leadership position through a multi-

branding strategy based on organic and inorganic growth.

Our multi-branding strategy was initiated as early as 1991 with
the acquisition of The Spaghetti House and the establishment of
Asia Pacific Catering. Other brands were added soon after, such as
Super Super Congee & Noodles, Oliver’s Super Sandwiches and
Luncheon Star. We diversified because as our society becomes more
affluent, customer profiles have become increasingly segmented
into niche markets. By broadening our restaurant portfolio, we have
been able to satisfy different customer segments in the market while

giving landlords more to choose from in our portfolio.
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Chairman’s Message
TR

It is with much gratification and cause for celebration that we have
laid a solid foundation and sustainable platform for the future. Since
we went public in 1986, the Group has transformed from a small
enterprise into an organisation whose scale and complexity would
probably have seemed unthinkable in the early years. I am glad to

have played a significant leadership role in this journey.

In our next Five-Year Plan, we will continue riding on the successful
development strategy we have built and will be exploring additional
opportunities for diversification, such as partnerships with overseas
catering groups. We will also solidify our expansion strategy laid
down years ago for the Greater China market, particularly in the
Pearl] River Delta and the Yangtze River Delta Region.

With growth, however, come challenges. To meet these challenges, it
is vital that we strengthen our hardware and software infrastructure,
including our major central processing plants both in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, and ensure that we have a steady stream of
capable management resources for the next five years. As many of
our key management staff are now approaching retirement age,
developing the next generation of leaders and ensuring an orderly
succession of top management will be among our top priorities. This
will enable us to transfer our years of experience and knowledge for

the sustainable growth of our Company.

Even more importantly, in the next five years we will be instituting a
more rigorous and comprehensive system of corporate governance.
To that end, we have established a Board Charter that sets corporate
governance standards for our Board and management. We have
also been working with an independent consulting firm to evaluate
the Board’s performance as a whole, as well as to benchmark our
practices on environmental and social responsibilities against

industry best practices.
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As our Company evolves from a family business into a
professionally-managed one, I look forward to continue leading an
effective Board. In my role as Chairman, I will help set our strategic
direction, embrace issues of sustainability, ensure management
continuity, and see that Café de Coral continues its impressive
growth as in the past 45 years in order to provide optimal returns for

all our shareholders.

Finally, I would like to thank the members of our Board and staff
for all their hard work and dedication during the year, as well as our
shareholders for their continuing confidence in our Company and
vision for the future.

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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Business Highlights
EBIBRE

8

The Group’s results for the year reached a new high despite
the difficult business environment.

Revenue for the year increased by 9%, reaching HK$6.99
billion.

Profit attributable to shareholders for the year increased by
8% to HK$581 million.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK51 cents per
share, with a total dividend payout ratio of 67.7% for the

year.

The Group is heading towards a new chapter. We have
developed a comprehensive strategy and implementation

plan that will enable the sustainable growth of the Group.
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Café de Coral Group Strategic Businesses
RREEE

Quick Service
Restaurant (QSR)
ERER

Café de Coral
Fast Food
RRERE

Oliver's Super
Sandwiches

Super Super

Congee & Noodles
]

espressamente
ily

Mixian Sense

KarE

Shanghai
Lao Lao
32777

Lane Noodles
BF RAE

Ichigyo Sushi
—AEA

Institutional
Catering
HBHRE

Asia Pacific
Catering

REME

Luncheon Star

ENFE

REEME T

Specialty
Restaurant
SEERE

The Spaghetti
House

Food Processing
& Distribution
BRINIESH

Scanfoods
ERER RS

Hong Kong Central

spaghetti 360° Food Processing Centre

BRPRERDL

ME.N.U 360°

Cooking MaMa 360

PizzaStage

@ Hong Kong Mainland China @ US and Canada
BB REIA ZEIRMER

Systemwide Sales Distribution
(For the year ended 31 March 2014)
HED M
(BE-Z-—NF=ZA=+—HLEFE)

Mainland China QSR North American QSR
FRED R i R AR EEMNERER
15.0% 9.4%

Food Processing & Distribution
BRMNIESEH
2.0%

N

Institutional Catering
HESRE

11.3%
Specialty Restaurant
BeRE
6.3%
Hong Kong QSR
BEEERRENR
56.0%

Total No. of Operating Units: 594
(As of 31 March 2014)
EIEBNEE 594
(BE=—Z—NMF=HA=+—8)

I No. of New Shops (Since 1 April 2013) : 31
HAEBE (A-F-=FEA—A) 3

0 Total % : 219
240 New Shops ¥ : 18

200

Total % : 140

160 NewShops T8:2Total 428 : 107
New Shops 7725 6 Total £2%{ : 87
120 — Now Shops 748 :4

80 T

Total 8% : 41
New Shop 75 : 1

K | W
0
Hong Kong  North i
QSR America
QSR

ChinaQSR  Catering Restaurant

BBER AEN TEAE BERE BReRBE
B RRER RREK
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CEQ’s Report
BREHITERS

It is a privilege for me as the Chief Executive Officer to report

our Company’s results for the 2013/14 financial year.

Last year, we celebrated our 45th anniversary and made a
number of significant leaps forward — in our business, in
our operations and in our strategic direction. As the Café
de Coral Group heads towards a new chapter, we require a
holistic roadmap for our business and organisation. We have
developed a comprehensive strategy and implementation plan
that will enable the sustainable growth of the Group. With our
solid foundation and careful planning, we are well positioned

to accomplish even more.
Highlights of the Year

I am delighted to report that the Group’s 2013/14 results reached a
new high with total turnover growing by 9% to HK$6,990 million
and profit attributable to shareholders surging by 8% to HK$581
million. FY2013/14 earnings per share rose to HK$1.01, and
payment of a final dividend of HK51 cents per share to shareholders

for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 has been recommended.

ARNDE R IATE Z 50 o 0K AR BE
BAR AR R = — AR s -

A3 & — 45 > G5 1 BEBLR 3% 1Y+ R 4R
Z W > AESEH - B B SR N D ki AR
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Be AL S5 Y 2 i V¥ et D o s W DR 4 1
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FEXRBEH
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BN TIEILT E W oT - B AR AL i A 52
8% ZHBNT—HEHEWIL —F—=
/Y B AR B 2 B I vk R 38 % 1.01 9
JC > EE B RIRERE - UEE=H
=4 — H 1k BB B 2 R S A B 51
WAl o
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Last year’s robust results and business performance did not come
easily as our business faced the constant challenges of rising
operating costs and labour shortages. The uncertain economic
outlook continued to affect customer confidence and spending.
In this difficult business environment, we have maintained
our competitiveness and market position through disciplined
implementation of our management’s business efficiency initiatives,
process enhancement, corporate governance, team building and

sustainability during the past few years.

Key highlights of the year include the following;:

® Our key production units in Hong Kong moved to the new
Central Food Processing Plant in Tai Po, Hong Kong, following its
completion in April 2013.

e Prominent benefits to our organisation and management were
seen as a result of the corporate governance enhancement

programme undertaken since 2012.

* During the past few years, management has taken major steps
to drive organisational efficiency by preparing a succession plan
and building a talent pool that caters to the Group’s business and

growth needs.

e Last year, our management launched a comprehensive
Sustainability Programme across all of our operations within the

Group to build a strong platform for business growth.

During the year, the management team dedicated itself to designing
a long-term growth strategy that maps the Group’s direction for
the next five years. In this report, I will present the rationale and

direction of our growth plan.

I would also like to take this opportunity to congratulate my
colleagues from the different business and operational teams on the
prizes, awards and other external recognitions they won during the
year. These accolades encourage us to do more and achieve even

better results.
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CEQ’s Report
BREHITERS

5-Year Strategic Growth Plan

The Group’s future growth requires proactive planning and
meticulous preparation. As the head of our management team,
I have taken upon myself, among other duties, our single most
important mission — to build a sustainable platform for the Group’s
continuing growth. After much deliberation and preparation over
the past year, the Group completed and adopted our new 5-year
growth plan that will commence in FY2014/15.

In crafting every detail of this long-term roadmap for the Group,
the team reflected on our business and organisation. Every success
achieved and every lesson learnt from our past growth plans have
guided us in mapping our future. We see that our success depends
on a strong and sustainable organisation and capable team of
people, and we have emphasised these in our new growth plan in

order to meet our demanding business targets.

Robust Platform: Wall-to-Wall Approach

A strong infrastructure is essential to the success of the Group’s
growth plan. For this reason, our management launched a
comprehensive Sustainability Programme across all operations
within the Group during the year. In the programme, we have
devised a long-term holistic framework for our business, operations
and organisation, including a high-standard corporate governance,
effective management, inclusive supply chain management,
robust production processes, centralised quality assurance and a
customer-oriented approach in our frontline operations. We have
also incorporated energy-efficient consumption, sustainable waste
management, risk management, transparent internal controls,
community engagement and team building. Together, these long-
term initiatives will complete our framework for sustainable growth

and contribute to the on-going health of the Group.
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I am therefore delighted to present the Group’s first Sustainability
Report along with the Group’s 2014 Annual Report, which has
been expanded from the Company’s current Corporate Social
Responsibility Report. In our new Sustainability Report, we focus on
specific key areas of our sustainability initiatives and, in future, will

report on their progress.

People: A Strong & Vibrant Team

At this milestone juncture for our organisation, we are committed
to building a stronger team and launching a long-term succession
programme across all of our corporate functions and business
operations. Experienced managers and staff are the cornerstone of
our organisation. While it is important that our team holds onto our
values and culture through mentorship and knowledge transfers,
we also recognise the need to constantly bring in new people with
different skill sets and new ideas. Continuing with our current
efforts, we have set specific targets and an implementation timeline

in our new growth plan to build a strong and united team.

20/20 Vision for Growth: Hong Kong & Mainland China

In the next five years, our objective is to expand in Hong Kong
and Mainland China with a focus on the mass catering and casual
dining segments. Creating value for customers has been the proven
recipe for our key brands in the mass market. We look at expanding
the network of our leading brands to maintain our leading position
as well as capturing unclaimed market share in this segment with
different brands and concepts. The great growth potential of the
casual dining segment in both Hong Kong and Mainland China — a
sector in which we have not done enough in the past — has become
more prominent. Our focus will be on building a stronger platform
with a portfolio of cuisines and dining concepts. We will also grow
our leading brands and develop new concepts by increasing our
internal capacity and co-operating with renowned overseas brand

owners.
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CEQ’s Report
BREHITERS

Business Review & Direction

Hong Kong Operations

Our Hong Kong operations continued to be the key driver of the
Group’s results with revenue growth of approximately 10% to
HK$5,589 million achieved for the year ended 31 March 2014.
Having contributed to approximately 80% of the Group’s 2013/14
total turnover, our business operations in Hong Kong give us a solid
foundation for accomplishing even greater market penetration and
expanding our business. Our constant focus and commitment is on
serving the vast majority of the city’s population with affordable,
quality meals whenever and wherever they need them — near their
homes, next to their workplaces, in schools and in campuses. This
has helped us maintain our leading position in the mass catering

sector and will drive the future expansion of our network.

Our 153 Café de Coral fast food outlets, 32 Super Super Congee
& Noodles shops and 20 Oliver’s Super Sandwiches shops (as at
31 March 2014) are all just around the corner from our customers.
They are always ready to serve those who want to start the day with
a hot and healthy breakfast, spend their lunch break with a wide
variety of delicious meal choices, have a cup of our signature milk
tea in the middle of the day, or spend time catching up with friends
and family over a relaxing dinner. We are truly delighted to be an
essential part of our customers’ daily lives as reflected in the growth

of our business.
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During the year, sales from comparable stores of Café de Coral
fast food and Super Super Congee & Noodles increased by
approximately 9% and 10% respectively over the previous year,
despite severe competition and the increasingly challenging
business environment. Café de Coral’s Value Meal series, launched
during the year, received tremendous customer support. We
will continue to come up with new ideas to create value for our
customers. Riding on the proven success of the Super Super
Congee & Noodles concept, we launched the Mixian Sense chain
— one of the new directions we have taken in recent years as part
of our multi-branding strategy. This noodle chain has started to gain
momentum and has the potential to grow and branch out. Oliver’s
Super Sandwiches also recorded steady growth during the year.
These chains continued with their phased renovations to enhance

customer experience.

In the past few years, we have also been positioning ourselves to
capture growth in the institutional catering market. As corporate
clients upgrade their support for their staff, the demand for quality
catering services on corporate premises has been increasing. Asia
Pacific Catering continued to hold the market-leading position
in this sector despite severe market competition. After successfully
gaining new clients and renewing a number of major contracts
during the year, the institutional catering arm of the Group operated
80 outlets (as at 31 March 2014) and continued to contribute

positively to the Group’s performance.
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We are also excited to report that our Luncheon Star has
remained the biggest school lunch provider in Hong Kong for nine
consecutive years. As many as 17 schools served by us received the
highest level of accreditation in the EatSmart School Accreditation
Scheme (ESAS) (Healthy Lunch) during the year. Luncheon Star’s
production and distribution has been accredited with ISO 22000
since 2007. By insisting on food quality and hygiene at every stage
of production and delivery, the Luncheon Star team has won the
long-term trust and support of schoolchildren and their parents.
During the year, Luncheon Star served an average of 80,000 meals

daily and continued to record positive growth.

In the casual dining sector, The Spaghetti House focuses on dining
among family and friends with 22 shops (as at 31 March 2014) while
spaghetti 360° restaurants appeal to younger patrons who look
for new dining concepts. Both chains recorded positive results and
contributed to the Group’s performance during the year. We also
continued to add new concepts and brands to capture emerging
opportunities in this segment. Our new home-grown brands
Shanghai Lao Lao and Lane Noodles are both examples of recent
efforts that have been well-received. We have been amplifying our
portfolio by bringing in strong brands from overseas, including
85°C and espressamente illy. Joint ventures with foreign brand
owners such as these not only facilitate business growth for us but
also bring in new knowledge and skills. In our new 5-year growth

plan, we target further expansion in this sector with other exciting
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concepts and strong brands from overseas owners and franchisors.
We appreciate that each of these new businesses has its own growth
pace, and we will tailor specific business models and timelines to

release their full business potential.

Mainland China Operations

Mainland China is the second strongest contributor and growth
engine for the Group, increasingly fuelling our Company’s
performance. Our operations in Mainland China contributed to
approximately 18% of the Group’s FY2013/14 total turnover. The
significant reduction of business-related dining and receptions
in Mainland China during the year posed a great challenge for
higher-end restaurants and affected overall consumer confidence
and thus other segments in the country’s dining industry. Despite
the impact on the overall market, total revenue from all of our
business operations in Mainland China surged by approximately
10% compared with the last financial year. Sales from comparable
stores of Café de Coral increased by approximately 4% over the
previous year, while The Spaghetti House continued to capture the
higher-end dining sector with healthy growth recorded. We attribute
this satisfactory business performance to our long-term strategy
of adding value and our team’s ability to take immediate steps to
capture opportunities arising from changes in dining trends. By
extending our Value Meal series to our shops in Southern China and
designing menus to capture more sales and customer support, we

continued to reinforce our formula for success in Mainland China.

As the catering market in Mainland China has become more mature
and dynamic, our growth strategy is increasingly relevant and vital.
In our new 5-year plan, we have set concrete targets to grow our
network in Southern China in the right pace as well as introducing
new brands and concepts to capture opportunities in both the mass

catering and casual dining segments in the Mainland China market.
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North American Operations

Manchu WOK chain faced a very challenging business
environment last year, with consumer spending greatly affected by
the economic slowdown in the region. The 140-outlet chain (as at 31
March 2014) in Canada and other areas of North America saw the
worst winter in 20 years, which aggravated its performance. Whilst
the team has put measures in place to improve the business and
continue to monitor their implementation, the Company prudently
provided for full impairment of the carrying amount of the goodwill
for the business in the Group’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014. Management is in the process of reviewing
the Manchu WOK business and mapping the way forward for the

business within the parameters of the Group’s 5-year plan.

Central Food Processing Plants

After more than five years of planning and hard work, we completed
the construction of our new Central Food Processing Plant in Tai Po,
Hong Kong. One by one, our key production units moved into this
well-structured production centre in April 2013. We take pride in the
pioneering design and advanced technology of this plant, which will
keep us ahead of our competitors. With this centralised production
facility, we are able to increase efficiency and production capacity as
well as reduce our energy consumption. Most importantly, it ensures
food quality and safety which are critical to our business and future

expansion.
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The Group’s Central Food Processing Plant in Guangzhou, China,
commenced operation in 2011, is now supporting our Southern
China business. The team’s experience gained in designing, building
and operating the Guangzhou production centre has also helped us
in the implementation of our Hong Kong processing plant project.
With its huge production capacity, the Guangzhou plant will fuel

our continuous business growth in the country.

In Dongguan, China our food processing plant has made full use of
its production capacity to support our catering business and supply
food products including our Viking Boats brand ham and sausages,
which are widely distributed to external parties throughout Hong
Kong and Mainland China.

People & Support

Our people are key to the Group’s ongoing growth. During the
year, the Group took many initiatives to provide our staff with a
better workplace. We also strengthened our people development
programmes in order to attract more talent and prepare the
workforce for our future business growth as well as to facilitate

internal knowledge transfer and smooth succession.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately 17,500
employees. We constantly focus on the Group’s competitiveness
to attract and retain people. Remuneration packages are generally
structured by reference to market terms, individual experience,
qualifications, duties and responsibilities. Employees share the
benefits of the Group’s growth through our share option schemes,

profit-sharing and performance incentive programme.

In a tight labour environment, the Group has been focusing on
maintaining and building a strong and stable workforce through a
well-structured internal promotion programme, extensive training
and development, and proactive talent retention and acquisition
initiatives. At the same time, we continue to explore automation
in certain areas of our production process in order to enhance

workplace safety and free up our staff to take on other roles.
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We remain committed to investing in information technology
to strengthen the systems and networks that support our
business. These include our central food processing centres,
branch management of shops, our payment gateway, centralised
headquarters management, business contingency and many other

aspects of our business and operations.
Financial Overview

The Group’s financial position for the 2013/14 financial year
remained healthy and strong. As at 31 March 2014, the Group
recorded net cash of approximately HK$1,004 million, with HK$536
million in available banking facilities. The Group had no external
borrowing (31 March 2013: nil) and nil gearing (31 March 2013:
nil). There has been no material change in contingent liabilities or

charge on assets on 31 March 2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had provided guarantees of
approximately HK$536 million (31 March 2013: HK$536 million) to
financial institutions in connection with banking facilities granted to

its subsidiaries.

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned
revenue and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, while those of our Mainland China and North
American subsidiaries and joint ventures were in Renminbi and in
United States dollars and Canadian dollars, respectively. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group.
However, we will continue to stay vigilant and closely monitor our

exposure to movements of relevant currencies.
Outlook

We appreciate that rising rental rates and raw material costs as
well as shortages in labour have become the norm in our business.
This year, global market and economic uncertainties, especially

in Mainland China and the US, will likely continue. In response
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to these imminent challenges, we shall continue our near-
term business development initiatives and long-term growth
plans in order to maintain healthy and steady growth. Our team
will continue to drive efficiencies and effectiveness to reinforce
our leading position in segments where we have a very strong
foundation, to continue with our steady and cautious shop-opening
strategy, to grow a scalable platform for our younger brands, and to

launch new brands and concepts.

Hong Kong and Mainland China remain the dual growth engines
for our Group. We will strive to maintain our market position and
upgrade our products and services to meet the dynamic and ever-
growing Hong Kong market. At the same time, we will continue
to expand and build a solid platform in Mainland China where the
potential for growth is enormous. Our Hong Kong and Mainland
China operations, synergizing with each other, will become the
platform for the Group’s sustainable growth. Our diversification
strategy remains the key driver in the Group’s sustainable growth,
through which we will strive to increase market penetration and
market share across all the segments on which we focus. The Group
will also continue to explore different opportunities to bring in new

brands and concepts through organic and inorganic growth.
Appreciation

I would like to thank the Board for their guidance and the
management team and all our staff for their dedication throughout
the year. I would also like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
customers, business partners and shareholders. Your support has
been the driving force behind our Company’s ability to accomplish

even more.

Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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Chairman

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 62, is the Chairman of the
Group. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 1984 and was appointed as
a Director of the Group in 1988. He led the Group as Managing
Director from 1989 to 1997 and as the Executive Chairman from
1997 to 2012. Mr. Chan has served as the Chairman of the Board in
the capacity of a Non-executive Director since April 2012. Having
worked as a professional town planner for various Government
bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, he has considerable experience
in planning and management. He holds a Degree in Sociology
and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. He is also a member of the Political Consultative
Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen in the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Chan is currently an Executive Committee Member of the Hong
Kong Retail Management Association, the General Committee
Member of the Employers” Federation of Hong Kong, Advisor of
the Quality Tourism Services Association, a Full member of the
Canadian and the Hong Kong Institute of Planners, and a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Marketing. He is also the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, the Chairman
of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong
Management Association and a member of the Board of Governors
of Canadian International School of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is also
appointed by the HKSAR Government as a Member of the Business
Facilitation Advisory Committee of the Financial Secretary’s Office

and a Member of Task Force on Promotion of Vocational Education.

In past years, Mr. Chan was personally bestowed with “The Stars
of Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Award”, the “Bauhinia
Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the
Year Award”, the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and Ernst & Young

Entrepreneur of the Year.
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Chairman (Continued)

Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of
Starlite Holdings Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited,
Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited and Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, and a non-executive director of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited. He is also a member of Sustainability
Advisory Committee of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust. All
of the above companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chan is a relative of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms. Lo Pik Ling,
Anita, Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr. Lo Ming Shing, Ian, all of

whom are Directors of the Company.
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group and a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lo
joined the Group in 1982 and has been an Executive Director since
1990. He was the Managing Director of the Group from December
1997 to March 2012 and was appointed the Chief Executive Officer
on 1 April 2012. Mr. Lo holds a Master’s Degree in Chemical
Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr. Lo is the brother of Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita, a Director of the
Company. He is also a relative of Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr.
Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr. Lo Ming Shing, Ian, all of whom are

Directors of the Company.
Executive Directors

Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 61, is an Executive Director and
the Group General Manager. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1982
and has been an Executive Director of the Company since 1990.
She is responsible for the sales and marketing of the Hong Kong
fast food, institutional catering, school catering and Chinese quick
service restaurant business. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social

Sciences from the University of Hong Kong.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Lo is the sister of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, a Director of the
Company. Ms. Lo is also a relative of Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael,
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr. Lo Ming Shing, Ian, all of whom are
Directors of the Company.

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 52, is an Executive Director and the
Managing Director (Business Development) of the Group. Mr. Lo
joined the Company in 1996 and has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 1998. He oversees the business development as
well as branch and property development of the Group. He holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic Engineering & Physics from the
Loughborough University of Technology, a Master’s Degree in
Medical Physics from the University of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree
in Medical Physics from the University of London and an Honorary

Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo is a relative of Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny, Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita and Mr. Lo Ming Shing,
Ian, all of whom are Directors of the Company. He is a director of
Wandels Investment Limited, Verdant Success Holdings Limited and
Sky Bright International Limited, each of which has discloseable
interests in the shares of the Company under the provisions of Part

XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Ming Shing, Ian, aged 40, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2010 and a member
of the Nomination Committee in April 2012. Mr. Lo is currently a
director of Property Exchange Services Limited (“PES”). Prior to
joining PES, he served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager
(Food Manufacturing) of the Group during the period from
November 2003 to June 2009. Mr. Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree of
Arts, specialist in Economics from University of Toronto.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lo is the son of Mr. Lo Hoi Chun who is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also a relative of Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms. Lo Pik Ling,
Anita and Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter, all of whom are Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 60, joined the Group in 1984
and has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since
1997. Mr. Hui is an executive director of Greenheart Group Limited
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Hui holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social
Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from the Brunel University in the United

Kingdom.
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael, J.P, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1994 and
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi
is a director of Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited.
Mr. Choi has been in the real estate industry for over 33 years with
extensive knowledge and experience in the real estate markets in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Currently, he is a member of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority, the Chairman of the Commercial
Properties Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority,
the Vice President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation
(formerly known as Hong Kong Real Estate Association), a member
of School of Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Baptist
University and a member of the Advisory Board on Business Studies
of the Lingnan University. Mr. Choi graduated from the Business
Management Department of the Hong Kong Baptist College and
obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the

University of East Asia, Macau.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSNEEAE

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 64, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1994 and
is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Li is
Chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known
as MCL Partners Limited), a Hong Kong-based investment firm,
and has extensive experience in the fields of investment banking,
merchant banking and capital markets. He is a non-executive
director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and an independent non-
executive director of China Everbright International Limited, Kunlun
Energy Company Limited, Kowloon Development Company
Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Tai Ping
Carpets International Limited. The shares of all these companies
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Li is also a non-independent non-executive director
of AFFIN Bank Berhad. Mr. Li has a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree
of Science in Civil Engineering from Brown University.

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, BB.S, ].P, aged 58, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in July
2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Kwok is a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is currently the Managing
Partner, Asia Strategy & Markets of King & Wood Mallesons. Mr.
Kwok is also qualified to practise as a solicitor in Australia, England
and Wales and Singapore. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia.
He is also a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Kwok graduated from the University of
Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and Laws
respectively, and a Master’s Degree in Laws. He also obtained the
Advanced Management Program Diploma of the Harvard Business
School.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert, aged 63, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company on 11 January 2013 and as
the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 20 February 2013. Mr.
Au is the Chairman of BDO Limited, the Hong Kong member
firm of BDO International Limited. He has more than 30 years of
experience in the accountancy profession. He was the President
of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants from December 2007 to December 2008. He is a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants and the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.
Mr. Au is currently the Chairman of the Corruption Prevention
Advisory Committee and member of the Advisory Committee on
Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption. He
is also a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and Hong
Kong Productivity Council (the”HKPC”). He is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the HKPC. He also serves as an independent
non-executive director of the Hongkong International Theme Parks
Limited, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Coalition of Professional
Services Limited and a director of the Joint Professional Centre
Limited.

Senior Management

Ms. Lau Lee Fong, Rosa, aged 59, joined the Group in 1979 and is
currently the Senior General Manager — Specialty Restaurants of the
Group. Ms. Lau is responsible for the development and management
of The Spaghetti House, spaghetti 360° and its series, Oliver’s Super
Sandwiches, ME.N.U 360° espressamente illy, PizzaStage and the
MIX business in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland China. Ms.
Lau holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the
University of East Asia, Macau and a Master’s Degree of Science in
Hotel & Tourism Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Lau is currently a member of the Hotel & Catering

International Management Association (U.K.).
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSNEEAE

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Lee Wai Kee, aged 59, rejoined the Group in 2002 and is
the Senior General Manager (China). Mr. Lee has extensive
experience in fast food business. Apart from being responsible for
the development of fast food business in South China, overseeing
the overall China business administration, human resources and
training development and food processing functions, Mr. Lee
also assists the Group in expanding the fast food business market
and quick service restaurant business in Mainland China and The
Spaghetti House’s business in South China. He holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the City University of

Macau.

Mr. Chen Siu Min, Kelvin, aged 63, joined the Group in 2004
and is currently the President and Chief Executive Officer of
Manchu WOK. Mr. Chen is responsible for the development and
management of the quick service restaurant chain in North America.
He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from the University of Southern
California. He was also a Certified Public Accountant of the State of

California.

Mr. Lim Hung Chun, Mike, aged 50, joined the Group in January
2011 as Chief Financial Officer. With over 25 years’ experience
in general management, corporate finance and financial control
all gained from top management positions held in renowned
corporations and firms, Mr. Lim is responsible for the overall
oversight of the Group’s financial planning and strategy as well
as headquarters management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lim
held various general management positions and directorships in
listed and private conglomerates with operations spanning key
international markets since 1990. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and
management aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and
constantly strive for a responsible and value-driven management
focusing on safeguarding and enhancing interest and value of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as well as the
long term sustainability of the Group.

Shareholders & Stakeholders
BRI E

Sustainability & Growth
AFHERRRIZE

Board & Board Committees
EZRREBR/BTZES

People & Planning
AN ERRHRE

Management Board
EEF

v

Risk Management
s EE

Corporate Management
hEE

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

The Group’s corporate governance framework and practices adhere
to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). For the year
ended 31 March 2014, we complied with all code provisions of the
CG Code and adopted the recommended best practices of the CG

Code insofar as they are relevant and practicable.

Key practices under the Group’s corporate governance framework

are set out in this report.

AnvERR(TEFR ) B A BRGSO
FrrKFZARREW - S EF NIEHA
AL B DA E i (B A AT B > AR
Wi e 418 5 A v ] B ([P ) e i T 4%
B > DA ASSR I 2 R 2 W Fp A B e -

Business Development
E

Control & Audit
LR ER B AR

Corporate Governance
EER

BriEEERTR

AR 2 A SE A IR SR I W LA A R
AU I B 22 5 B A PR 2 ] (T 7 9 1B 22 e )
a e bl AR (T i BRI 1) B 8+ 1Y 2 4
ST (T 28R TR M 5 -
RBEE_F—NEZA =+ —HIREE
A O ST A A 3R AR T R 2 A BB
3C > WAEMI B K AT AT Z B VLT SR AN A SR A
AP R R AL o

A B RA L P A SRR R T 2 1
HWHL o

ARRYEBBERLT -2014 FH 29



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board continuously reviews and improves the Group’s
governance standard. The Board, assisted by management, also

cultivates a transparent and ethical corporate culture.

A comprehensive review of the Group’s corporate governance
performance was conducted during the year. Through internal
efforts and external advice, a corporate governance enhancement
programme was established. Key enhancement initiatives

undertaken during the year include the following:

* The Directors” Handbook for Corporate Governance was
adopted to consolidate and strengthen the Company’s corporate
governance principles and policies. The Handbook is designed
with reference to and in compliance with the Listing Rules and

the bye-laws of the Company (the”Bye-laws”).

* The Board Charter was revised to better define the roles and
responsibilities of the Board as a whole as well as individual
Directors including the Chairman of the Board. The authority and
duties of the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board

were also clearly defined in the Board Charter.

* Proceedings of the Board and Board Committee meetings were
established to formally set out the procedures of and other

matters relating to meetings of the Board and its Committees.

* The Board Diversity Policy to enhance sustainability of the Group

was adopted.

* The Disclosure Policy was adopted to provide clear guidelines for
the Directors and management to ensure timely and appropriate

dissemination of inside information concerning the Group.
e The Corporate Compliance Policy was adopted to define the

framework for the Group’s observance of and compliance with

relevant laws and regulations.
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* The Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation which
sets out the procedures and reporting channels by which our
employees and business partners can report concern about

practices in relation to the Group was launched.

* The board evaluation program was launched during the year
under which the Board completed its latest evaluation in June
2014.

Directors

The Board

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the
responsibility for leadership and control and be collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board currently
comprises ten members, including three Executive Directors, three
Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive

Directors (collectively, the”Directors”) as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ChanYue Kwong, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, Ian

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Biographies, including relationships among members of the Board
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on
page 22 to 28 of the Company’s 2014 Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors with each Director having sound knowledge,
experience and expertise contributing to the successful performance
and development of the Group. In situation where certain areas of
expertise/advice are required, external advisers or consultants shall

be engaged to advise the Directors at the Company’s expenses.

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties
of care, skill and diligence. Comprehensive directors and officers
liability insurance coverage is in place to provide protection to the

Company, the Directors and senior management.

The Directors conduct periodically evaluation of the performance of
the Board as a whole. Evaluation results and areas of improvement
are identified to enhance the board effectiveness and corporate

governance.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly established

and set out in the Board Charter.

The Chairman, being a non-executive Director, provides leadership
for the Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The
Chairman takes the lead to encourage Directors to make active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and ensure that the Board acts in

the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the
Company and is accountable to the Board. His main responsibilities
include overseeing the implementation of the Group’s strategies,
objectives and policies, and monitoring day-to-day management of
the Group’s businesses and operations as well as the operating and

financial results of the Group’s businesses against plans and budget.
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Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive
Directors give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied
background and experiences. Through active participation in Board
meetings and serving on various Board Committees, the Non-
executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
bring in independent judgment and make valuable contributions to

the effective direction and strategic decision-making of the Group.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee has assessed the independence of each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors based on the guidelines
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered them to

be independent.

The Board and Management

The Board Charter adopted by the Board sets out the duties and
powers of the Board, the roles and responsibilities of Directors, the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer and their

respective relationship with management.

The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders
regarding management of the Group in addition to those powers
and authorities conferred upon it under the Bye-laws. The role of
the Board is to provide overall strategic direction for the Group and
effective oversight of management. The Board Charter sets out a
schedule of matters reserved to the Board which mainly include the

following:

e Approval of strategic direction and related objectives of the

Group;

® Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

e Approval of significant transactions and investments and major

financial matters;
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* Ensuring risk management and internal control system of the

Group;

e Approval of Company’s announcements, circular and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports;

and
e Appointment or removal of external auditor.

The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority
to manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management
Board is headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members
include all the Executive Directors, the Chief Financial Officer
and such other senior executives of the Group as nominated by
the Chief Executive Officer and agreed by the Board. When the
Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, clear directions are given as to the limits
of the authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances where
management should report to the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. Principal
functions that are delegated by the Board to the Management Board

include the following:

* Development and implementation of corporate strategy and

objectives;

* Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters
within the limit delegated by the Board;

* Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

* Development, implementation and management of risk

management and internal control;

* Development of human resources policies and succession

planning of executives; and

* Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with
sufficient and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to

the Group’s business and financial performance.
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The Board reviews its delegation of responsibilities to management
from time to time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the

need of the Group and its business.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and
the Bye-laws, (i) any Director who is appointed to fill a casual
vacancy is subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment; and (ii) all Directors should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are

eligible for re-election.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company have been appointed for a specific term
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Bye-laws and

the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction & Continuous Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
operations, business and governance policies of the Group. In
addition, our external legal adviser meets with the new Director to
ensure that he/she is fully aware of the responsibilities as a director
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal

requirements and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development
is critical for them to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains relevant. Directors receive from senior management and
the Company Secretary regular updates and presentations on
developments to the Group’s business and changes to the statutory
and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors” discharge
of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and
briefing sessions for the Directors to help them keep abreast with
the Group’s business and operation as well as developments of

regulatory and compliance requirements.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous improvement
programmes held by external bodies at the expense of the Company.
All Directors are required to provide the Company with their
training record on a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training

records for the year is set out below:

A A ) S5 i o 2 RO S A B e A
HEGHE > BREAAFRSE - TAEF
¥ 780 J) 1e) A 2 ] 4R AN 4 2 A B
SRR E R BB T

Training Areas (Note)

Directors 5= EINERE ()

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chief Executive Officer) BRNEE (BESTE) abe

Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEZL a,be

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter EERSE a b e

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (Chairman) BR¥G A K% (/) abe

Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan EARELE abe

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel HFRE L abe

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael EREE abe

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEE%%E a,b,cde

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry SRR L a,b,cd

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert BEMLLE abe

Note: Training relating to (a) corporate governance; (b) legal and  Mwk = K ()34 5 (b) B RE
regulatory; () accounting/financial; (d) risk management; and (o) frst, /W 5 (d) MBI BE 5 Sz (e) A
(e) business operation update of the Group AR T S5 T S

Board Committees EERETZES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board
to discharge its functions. Each Committee has specific written
terms of reference which sets out clearly the Committee’s duties
and authority. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are
published on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties, including the support of management and
engagement of independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense. The Committees report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations and maintain an effective and constructive

communication with the Board.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following five
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive

Directors:

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
(Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent
Non-executive Director
Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, Ian

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing
at least annually the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to

complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Board adopts a Board Diversity Policy which aims to build
and maintain diversity of the Board in terms of skills, professional
experience, cultural and educational background, gender, age, and
other attributes and strengths that are required for the Company’s
business from time to time. The policy stipulates that Board
appointments will be made on a merit basis and candidates will be
considered against objective selection criteria, with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee
is delegated by the Board to review the Board Diversity Policy on a
regular basis, make recommendations to the Board on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board as appropriate and

monitor the progress on achieving the objectives.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year

when the following key issues were discussed:

Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board;

* Assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-

executive Directors;
* Discussion on the arrangement of board evaluation; and

* Consideration and making recommendation to the Board on re-
election of Directors for Shareholders” approval at the last annual

general meeting of the Company held on 10 September 2013.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following

three Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael
(Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Independent
Non-executive Director

Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry Independent

Non-executive Director

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and
structure for remuneration of Directors and senior management
and determining the specific remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management of the Company. The
remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to duties
and responsibilities of the role, experience and the prevailing market
conditions. Remuneration of Executive Directors is structured to
align with the long-term interest of the Company with significant
proportion of remuneration linked to corporate and individual

performance.
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Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during

the year when the following key issues were discussed:

e Consideration of remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and senior management and making recommendation
to the Board; and

* Review of the share award scheme proposal and making

recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises the following four

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert
(Chairman of the Committee)
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael Independent
Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent

Non-executive Director

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
financial information of the Company and overseeing the financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems

and corporate governance functions.

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year

when the following key issues were discussed:

* Review of the independence of the external auditor and

engagement of external auditor;

* Discussion of audit findings with external auditor and the related

management responses;

* Review of the Group’s annual and interim financial statements

and the related results announcements;
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* Consideration of provision for goodwill impairment of North

America business and making recommendation to the Board;

* Review of the development in accounting standards and its
effects on the Group, goodwill assessment and financial reporting

matters;

* Review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function

as well as their training programmes and budget;
* Annual review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions;

e Approval of the internal audit plan, review and monitor risk
management, internal control performance as well as the

effectiveness of the internal control system;

* Consideration and making recommendations to the Board the
adoption of certain corporate governance policies, including
Conflict of Interest Policies, Disclosure Policy, Corporate
Compliance Policy and Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and

Investigation;

* Review of the Company’s practices on corporate governance and

making recommendations to the Board; and

* Review of the Company’s compliance with CG Code and

disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report.
During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions

with the external auditor and external internal audit consultant

respectively without the presence of management.
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

The Board held four scheduled meetings at approximately quarterly

intervals and two special meetings during the year.

Proposed dates for regular Board and Board Committee meetings
for the year are provided to Directors at the beginning of the
year. Formal notices of at least 14 clear calendar days are given in
respect of regular meetings. For special Board or Board Committee
meetings, reasonable notices are given. Arrangement is in place
to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda for regular

meetings.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular
Board and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at

least three clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered and decision reached,
including any concern raised by Directors or dissenting views
expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all

Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the meetings.
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Attendance records of the Directors at Board meetings, Board &#HHFRBKE_-F—WE=ZH=1—HIk

Committee meetings and Annual General Meeting held during the FENBEFZEHHGHE EHRBE TR

year ended 31 March 2014 are set out below: Bk SRR R AR 2 R AL kg
W

Number of meetings attended/held
during the year ended 31 March 2014
REZ-Z-NF=A=+—HLEFE

HEBHZEERE
Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual
Board Committee = Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER REZEE FWEEE BERZES REREF
E E 23 =E g
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BmEXEE

(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHITE) 6/6 V1 NAREAR NATER 1/1
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEZLL 6/6 NATEAR NATEAR NATEA 171
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEASLE 6/6 NATER NATEAR NATER 171
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael PR¥E K &

(Chairman) (/%) 6/6 NATEAR NATER NATEA 1/1
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan BEREE 6/6 V1 NATER NATEHR 1/1
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FFRESLE 6/6 NATER NATEAR NATER 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITES
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael BEMRLE 6/6 1/1 3/3 5/5 1/1
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey EEEKE 5/6 1/1 3/3 5/5 1/1
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry SBME LA 5/6 1/1 3/3 5/5 1/1
Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert EEALE 56  NATER NATEAR 5/5 1/1
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Group’s financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for
the reporting period. The Board is aware that its responsibilities to
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment extend
to annual and interim reports, reports to regulators, other inside
information and financial disclosures required under the Listing
Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to

statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board for approval. Each Director has separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management for

inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor

A statement by the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 77 to 79 of the Company’s 2014 Annual Report.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s

auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable

Type of services REESE 2t ENER
HK$'000
FET
Audit services ZE AR 4307
Non-audit services* IR * 2,137
Total et 6,444

* The non-audit services include mainly advisory services on taxation
and corporate governance and compliance.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard Shareholders” investments and the
Group’s assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal

control system.

The Group adopts a control and risk self-assessment methodology
and continuously assesses and manages its business risks by
way of assessment by the headquarters of the Group and each
business unit on a regular basis, and communication of key control

procedures to employees.

With assistance of external consultant under a co-sourcing
arrangement, Internal Audit Department and the external consultant
have continuous review of the Group’s internal control system,
working systems and workflows, as well as management systems.
The review is conducted by making reference to the guidelines and
definitions given by the regulatory and professional bodies for the
purpose of assessing the five different internal control elements,
namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities,

information and communication, and monitoring.

The Group has established defined organisational structures.
Authority to operate various business functions is delegated to
respective management within limits set by senior management
of the headquarters or the Executive Directors. The senior
management by way of Management Board as leaded by the Chief
Executive Officer meets on a regular basis to discuss and approve
business plans and budgets prepared by individual business units.
The performance of the Group is reported to the Board on a regular

basis.

The importance of internal controls and risk management is
communicated to staff members in order to foster a control
environment and awareness within the Group. The Group has
properly documented the operational procedures of all related
business units, as well as authorisation and approval procedures for

significant decision making.
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. Guidelines on specific areas including corporate and
financial reporting, conflicts of interest, personal benefits, relations
with suppliers and contractors, disclosure of inside information,
malpractice reporting and investigation have been issued. New
employees are informed of the Code of Ethics, corporate mission

and objectives through the Group’s staff orientation programme.

The Group identifies, assesses and ranks the risks that are relevant
to the Group’s business according to their likelihood, financial
consequence and reputational impact on the Group. Risk profile is
reassessed periodically and the latest assessment was conducted
in 2014. Food safety is always the core risk element in the risk
profile. Its related controlling and monitoring mechanism have been
embedded in the day-to-day business operations. Identified issues

are closely managed and resolved in a proactive and timely manner.

Annual internal audit work plan is developed based on the result
of risk assessment. The work plan is reviewed and approved by
management and the Audit Committee. During the year, the
Internal Audit Department and the external consultant conducted
internal control reviews covering financial, operational and
compliance controls of operations in Hong Kong, Southern China
and North America. Internal Audit Department also conducted
ad hoc review requested by management. Key business heads in
Hong Kong, the Mainland China and North America confirmed
the effectiveness of the internal controls system during the year.
Audit recommendations are agreed with respective department
heads. They are tracked and followed up for proper implementation.
Progress is reported to management and the Audit Committee on
a regular basis. The Audit Committee reports to the Board on any

material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted an annual
review and assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014 and was satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group
in managing risks based on management reports and the result of

internal control reviews.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity
at all times. During the year, the Board launched the Protocol on
Malpractice Reporting and Investigation to provide guidance to
our employees and business partners who may, from time to time,
feel that they need to raise certain issues relating to the Group
in confidence and to ensure that they can raise any matters of
genuine concern without fear of reprisals, in the knowledge that
they will be taken seriously and that the matters will be investigated

appropriately and regarded as confidential.

Under the Group’s Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and
Investigation, employees and business partners may raise their
concern by sending their malpractice reports to Head of Internal
Audit who reports directly to the Audit Committee on receipt
and investigation of malpractice reports. For malpractice reports
concerning the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and/
or any members of the Management Board, informants may make

direct reports to the Chairman of Audit Committee.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company, the Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model

Code for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their

dealings in the Company’s securities.
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Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company takes
seriously of its obligations under the new Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Group’s
Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors
and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group
is to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner.
Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate their

understanding and compliance with the policy.
Company Secretary

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also
to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on day-to-
day duties and responsibilities. Company Secretaries are responsible
for supporting and advising the Board on governance matters. All
Directors have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretaries to ensure that board procedures, all applicable rules and

regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional training

requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders” Communication
Policy to ensure proactive communication with Shareholders and
keep Shareholders informed of balanced and understandable
information about the Company in a factual and timely manner.
The Policy also serves to govern the Company’s open and regular
dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the
media through effective corporate communication system covering
various communication channels including shareholders meetings,

corporate’s publications and website, press and analyst conferences.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 10
September 2013, the Chairman of the Board, Chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee and the external auditor were present to communicate
with Shareholders. Procedures for the poll voting on the proposed
resolutions were explained at the meeting by the Chairman. The
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, acted as scrutineer to ensure
the votes were properly counted and the poll results were published
on both the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and the Bye-laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of
the Company and put forward proposals at general meetings. The
procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general meeting,
put forward proposals at shareholders” meetings and propose a
person for election as a director of the Company are available on the

website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the
Company at the Company’s head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral
Centre, 5 Wo Shui Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong. Shareholders can also make enquiries to the Board directly at

the general meetings.

The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws are
available on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31 March 2014, there was
no change to the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the

Company.
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Investor Relations

Management of the Company regularly meets with institutional
investors, financial analysts and financial media, and releases
information related to the business progress of the Company to
provide updates on the recent developments of the Company. The
Company has regularly participated in conferences and roadshows
to enhance communication with the investment community.
Investors are welcome to send their enquiries to our Investor
Relations Officer at irs@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s

website for latest update information of the Group.
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Major investor relations activities participated by the Company 4P A2 H] 2 B i) 32 2248 3 3 B AR 15 B)
during the year are set out below: W

Event Organiser Location
EE IR ih 24
Asia Consumer & Gaming Conference Barclays Hong Kong
EMNHERBEOEEE BER BB
Consumer Access Day CLSA Hong Kong
SHEBREMT A ERRS5 BB
Asia Pacific Emerging Corporate Day Standard Chartered Hong Kong
EAEHEMSEEFNA BITRIT BB
Hong Kong/China Consumer Conference Citi Hong Kong
BB/ TEHBLEEE i BB
Asian Investment Conference Credit Suisse Hong Kong
mNREEE e BB

The Company also conducts regular meetings with the financial
analysts and financial media updating the Company’s business
performance and future directions. During the year, seven financial
investment organisations published research coverage in respect
of the Company. Details of research coverage list and contact of
respective investment banks or organisations can be obtained at the

Company’s website.
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Directors’ Report
EERWE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service
restaurants, fast casual dining, institutional catering, specialty
restaurant chains as well as food processing and distribution. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Results and Appropriations

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 83 of the Company’s 2014 Annual

Report.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK17 cents per share was
paid. The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK51 cents per share, totaling approximately HK$295,168,000 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 17 September 2014. The proposed final dividend
is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 11 September
2014. Details of dividends for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set

out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2014
amounted to approximately HK$667,834,000.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company

during the year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the percentage of sales or
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or

suppliers was less than 30%.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the

Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
Principal Investment Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are
set out on page 201 of the Company’s 2014 Annual Report.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totaling HK$498,000.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in

Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 202 to 204
of the Company’s 2014 annual report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the

laws of Bermuda.
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Directors’ Report
EERWE

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 March 2014, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s

listed securities.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or
Similar Rights

Other than the share option schemes described below, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or
similar rights as at 31 March 2014. Save as disclosed below, there
has been no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,

warrants or similar rights during the year.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ChanYue Kwong, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, Ian

Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) and the Company’s corporate governance practice, Ms.
Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr. Lo Tak Sing, Peter, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael, Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael and Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong,
Larry shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael and Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry
have served the Board as Independent Non-executive Directors
for more than nine years. Mr. Choi and Mr. Kwok have each made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Notwithstanding the length of their tenures, the
Board is satisfied that, taking into account, inter alia, the valuable
independent judgment, advice and objective views contributed by
Mr. Choi and Mr. Kwok over the years, both Mr. Choi and Mr. Kwok
are of such character, integrity and experience commensurate with
office of independent non-executive directors. The Board is not
aware of any circumstance that might influence the independence
of Mr. Choi and Mr. Kwok.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Saved as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 March 2014 or at any time during the

year.
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Directors’ Report
EERWE

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 March 2014 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Share Option Schemes

2003 Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
24 September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company may grant
options to eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Company granted options to certain employees of the Group
(including Executive Directors of the Company) pursuant to the

2003 Scheme. Summary of details of the 2003 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business
and development of the Group

Participants Employees (whether full-time or

part-time), executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries,
suppliers and customers of the Group
and consultants, advisers, managers,
officers and corporations that provide
research, development or other

technical support to the Group
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

2003 Scheme (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued

share capital that
it represents

as at the date

of this report

Maximum entitlement

of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under

an option

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of
the option

7,661,000 ordinary shares
representing 1.3% of the issued

share capital as at 24 June 2014

In any 12-month period shall not

exceed 1% of the shares in issue

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, a period of five years
commencing on the date on which
an option becomes exercisable and
expiring on the last day of the five-
year period save that such period
shall not expire later than ten years

from the date of grant

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, there is no general
requirement that an option must

be held for any minimum period

before it can be exercised

HK$1.00
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Directors’ Report

EER®E

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

2003 Scheme (Continued)

Basis of determining

the exercise price

The remaining life
of the scheme

2012 Scheme

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a

Company’s share

The 2003 Scheme expired on
24 September 2013

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing of a
shareholders’resolution on 11 September 2012 (the”2012 Scheme”).
Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the

eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company

subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. As of the date

of this report, no share options have been granted by the Company
under the 2012 Scheme. Summary of details of the 2012 Scheme is

as follows:

Purpose

To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business

and development of the Group
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

2012 Scheme (Continued)

Participants

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued

share capital that
it represents

as at the date

of this report

Maximum entitlement

of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under

an option

Employees, executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries,
suppliers and customers of the Group
and consultants, advisers, managers,
officers and corporations that provide
research, development or other

technical support to the Group

57,182,403 ordinary shares
representing 9.9% of the issued

share capital as at 24 June 2014

In any 12-month period shall not

exceed 1% of the shares in issue

Such period shall be determined
by the Board and specified in the
letter to the grantee, which may be
varied by the Board in accordance
with the terms of the 2012 Scheme,
provided that it shall not under any
circumstances exceed ten years from
the date of grant of the relevant

option
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Directors’ Report
EERWE

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

2012 Scheme (Continued)

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held

before it can be

exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of

the option

Basis of determining

the exercise price

The remaining life

of the scheme

The Board may, in its discretion,
determine the time or period when
the right to exercise the option in
respect of all or some of the shares

the subject of the option will vest

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a

Company’s share

The 2012 Scheme remains in force
until 10 September 2022 unless
otherwise terminated under the
terms of the 2012 Scheme
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted

Details of the share options granted under the 2003 Scheme and
movements in such holdings during the year ended 31 March 2014

were as follows:

R R E (&)
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Number of options @
AREEHE @

BEZF-NE=ZA=+—HILFEN -
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Exercise
price per Outstanding Outstanding
option at 1 April at 31 March
BHRK 2013 Exercised Lapsed 2014
Date of 4FRETTHEE Exercise R=—Z—= during during R=—ZF—DMF
Grantees grant HK$ period A —H the year theyear =A=+—H
AR A LB BT TR e RATE FRITHE FREXK i RATE
Directors & substantial
shareholders
EERFERR
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny  1/11/2005® 8.800 1/1/2007- 1,200,000 (600,000) - 600,000
‘KL 31/10/2015
2/10/2007 © 14.268 30/3/2008- 1,350,000 (300,000) - 1,050,000
29/3/2017
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter ~ 2/10/2007 @ 14.748 30/3/2009- 60,000 - - 60,000
BEALE 1/10/2017
Directors
=3
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita 2/10/2007 © 14.268 30/3/2008- 405,000 (67,500) - 337,500
BEZLT 29/3/2017
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, 2/10/2007 © 14.268 30/3/2008- 1,340,000 (515,000) - 825,000
Michael 29/3/2017
FRI&H B4
Continuous contract 1/11/2005@ 8.750 1/1/2007- 644,000 (288,000) - 356,000
employees 31/10/2015
EEEWNES
1/11/2005% 8.750 1/1/2008- 270,000 (60,000) - 210,000
31/10/2015
2/10/2007 @ 14.748 30/3/2008- 3,553,000 (978,000) (18,000) 2,557,000
29/3/2017
2/10/2007 @ 14.748 30/3/2009- 712,000 (170,000) - 542,000
1/10/2017
28/10/2010 ™ 22.370 31/3/2011- 2,110,000 (213,000) - 1,897,000
30/3/2020
28/10/2010 0 22.370 31/3/2012- 804,000 (40,000) - 764,000
27/10/2020
12,448,000 (3,231,500) (18,000) 9,198,500
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Directors’ Report
EERWE

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted (Continued)
Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(©

60

Number of options refers to the number of underlying shares of
the Company covered by the options under the 2003 Scheme.

These options would vest in 5 equal tranches. The first four
tranches were exercisable at HK$8.800 per share during a
four-year period commencing 1 January 2007, 1 January 2008,
1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010 respectively. The last tranche
was exercisable at HK$8.800 per share from 1 January 2011 to 31
October 2015.

These options would vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on
30 March 2008, 15% on 30 March 2009, 20% on 30 March 2010,
25% on 30 March 2011 and 30% on 30 March 2012 and were
exercisable at HK$14.268 per share during a five-year period
commencing the respective dates of vesting.

These options would vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on
30 March 2009, 15% on 30 March 2010, 20% on 30 March 2011,
25% on 30 March 2012 and 30% on 30 March 2013. The first four
tranches were exercisable at HK$14.748 per share during a five-
year period commencing the respective date of vesting. The last
tranche was exercisable at HK$14.748 per share from 30 March
2013 to 1 October 2017.

These options would vest in 5 equal tranches. The first four
tranches were exercisable at HK$8.750 per share during a
four-year period commencing 1 January 2007, 1 January 2008,
1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010 respectively. The last tranche
was exercisable at HK$8.750 per share from 1 January 2011 to 31
October 2015.
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

®

(8

(h)

(@)

These options would vest in 5 equal tranches. The first four
tranches were exercisable at HK$8.750 per share during a four-
year period commencing 1 January 2008, 1 January 2009, 1
January 2010 and 1 January 2011 respectively. The last tranche
was exercisable at HK$8.750 per share from 1 January 2012 to 31
October 2015.

These options would vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on
30 March 2008, 15% on 30 March 2009, 20% on 30 March 2010,
25% on 30 March 2011 and 30% on 30 March 2012 and were
exercisable at HK$14.748 per share during a five-year period
commencing the respective date of vesting.

These options would vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31
March 2011, 15% on 31 March 2012, 20% on 31 March 2013,
25% on 31 March 2014 and 30% on 31 March 2015 and were
exercisable at HK$22.370 per share during a five-year period
commencing the respective date of vesting.

These options would vest in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31
March 2012, 15% on 31 March 2013, 20% on 31 March 2014,
25% on 31 March 2015 and 30% on 31 March 2016. The first four
tranches were exercisable at HK$22.370 per share during a five-
year period commencing the respective date of vesting. The last
tranche was exercisable at HK$22.370 per share from 31 March
2016 to 27 October 2020.
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

() In respect of the category of “Directors & Substantial
Shareholders”, the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which the
share options were exercised during the year was HK$25.32.

(k) In respect of the category of “Directors”, the weighted average
closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were exercised during the year
was HK$24.57.

() In respect of the category of “Continuous contract employees”,
the weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options were
exercised during the year was HK$24.70.

Share Award Scheme

On 27 August 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company adopted a
share award scheme (the “Scheme”) which any individual being an
existing director, employee, officer, supplier, customer, consultant,
adviser or manager of any member of the Group is entitled to
participate in as selected participant who may be granted an
award of restricted shares and/or performance shares during the
period commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on the day
immediately prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption
Date. The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and reward selected
participants for their contributions to the business and development
of the Group. The Scheme also aims to provide a competitive
remuneration and/or incentive package in order to attract and retain
talent for the development of the Group’s business, and to promote
long term success of the Group by aligning the interests of selected

participants and shareholders.
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Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 15 years from
the Adoption Date and is administrated by the Board and the
trustee of the Scheme. The total number of shares to be awarded
under the Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to a selected participant but unvested
under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued

shares of the Company from time to time.

No shares have been awarded by the Company under the Scheme
as of the date of this report.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 March 2014, the interests of each Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were

as follows:
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and EBEERFTETHAENKH - 18
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and BR#O EEHFF 2 EEZR XA
Debentures (Continued) (#&)

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares (long position)
ZER HEROGHE (F8)

% of total
Equity issued shares*
Personal Family Corporate Other derivatives® Total LB 1T
Name of Director interests interests interests interests i interests B 13 4458
EEHR PN £ RikfER AREER HibER fTETA® ERRY ZBEDH*
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, 19,282,000 - - 37,383,394 @ 1,650,000 58,315,394 10.101%
Sunny
EFNEE
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita 13,662,839 - - - 337,500 14,000,339 2.425%
BETLL
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter 350,000 - - 89,308,213 ® 60,000 89,718,213 15.541%
BEASE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, 6,336,407 4,096,000 © - - 825,000 11,257,407 1.950%
Michael
BR¥G A 4
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan 40,000 - - - - 40,000 0.007%
BRANLE
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - - - - 25,837 0.004%
RELLE
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,000 @ - - - - 55,000 0.010%
TEESRE

*  The percentage has been calculated based on 577,298,533 shares in issue as at 31 March 2014.

* HAWARPA ZFE—NE=H =+—H OB 1784 577,298,533 w1 # -

Notes: Fif sk

(@) Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny was deemed to be interested in these — (a) &SRR H—KEETCAARAE - 4
shares held under a family trust in the capacity of founder. PGB R IRE R AT Z LN >

W2 F5 A7 A B A 2 o

(b) These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited  (b) &% R4 #2577 H Wandels Investment
(“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned by Sky Bright International Limited ([ Wandels]) ## © Sky Bright
Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success International Limited ([ Sky Bright]) &
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success Holdings Limited ([ Verdant
Verdant Success were wholly-owned by RBC Trustees (CI) Limited Success |) 43 B145H Wandels 50% Z B o
which was the trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr. Lo Sky Bright} Verdant Success#J % RBC
Tak Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by Trustees (CI) LimitedZ 2 &M B A »
virtue of being beneficiary of one of the family trusts. RBC Trustees (CI) Limited %% /5 [H] 2 HE 5%

fRREZZab N o ZRIEARSe B 2 Horp — K
RAFFEZ 5280 N > SO 2 R A W% S I
RS o
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(¢ Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in
these shares through interests of his spouse.

(d) These shares were held by Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly with
his spouse.

(e) The interests in equity derivatives represented interests in options
granted to the Directors named above under the Company’s share
option scheme(s) to subscribe for shares of the Company, further
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Schemes”above.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity
derivatives of the Company are long positions. None of the
Directors held any short position in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their respective
associates had or was deemed to have any interest or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EER®E

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of every
persons, other than a Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, as

recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of

the SFO were as follows:

FERRES

BROF-NEZHAZ+—H » RAFEMRE
i 7 B B R 56 336 R PR A 2 B 4 BT
A > R A T A B R B B B 2 s
HZ N L (BPAG A2 7] CBATIRA 5% s A
) (BRARA #5478 5h) 35

T

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares (long positions)

EER AREROEE (FA)

% of total
issued shares*
Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Total LB BT
substantial shareholder interests interests interests interests interests %10 48 %8
TERRHES BB AR RikfER NEIER Hihfgs Ay ZBEDtE*
Wandels Investment Limited - - - 89,308,213 @ 89,308,213 15.470%
Sky Bright International Limited - - - 89,308,213 @ 89,308,213 15.470%
Verdant Success Holdings Limited - - - 89,308,213 @ 89,308,213 15.470%
RBC Trustees (Cl) Limited - - - 89,308,213 @ 89,308,213 15.470%
Ms. Tso Po Ping - 58,315,394 ® - - 58,315,394 10.101%
BEBYut
Ardley Enterprises Limited - - - 37,383,394 @ 37,383,394 6.476%
Mr. Lo Hoi Chun 132,000 - 67,880,834 @ - 68,012,834 11.781%
ERBEE
Ms. Man Bo King - 68,012,834 © - - 68,012,834 11.781%
XBRZt
LBK Holding Corporation 35,969,133 - - - 35,969,133 6.231%
MMW Holding Corporation 31,911,701 @ - — - 31,911,701 5.528%
Matthews International - - - 63,078,100 ™ 63,078,100 10.926%
Capital Management, LLC
Arisaig Asia Consumer 28,938,000 - - - 28,938,000 5.013%
Fund Limited
Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) - - - 28,938,000 28,938,000 5.013%
Limited
Mr. Lindsay William Ernest Cooper - - 28,938,000 - 28,938,000 5.013%

* The percentage has been calculated based on 577,298,533 shares in issue as at 31 March 2014.

* HAWTIRR R EEH = H OB 577,298,533 R ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(©)

®

(®

(h)

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited
(“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned by Sky Bright International
Limited (“Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and
Verdant Success were wholly-owned by RBC Trustees (CI) Limited
which was the trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr. Lo
Tak Shing, Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to
be interested in these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of
one of the family trusts.

Ms. Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares
through the interests of her spouse, Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (of
which 1,650,000 shares were interests in underlying shares).

These interests were held by Ardley Enterprises Limited in the
capacity of trustee. These interests represented part of the interests
of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, being a Director of the Company.

Mr. Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares
which were held, as to 35,969,133 shares by LBK Holding
Corporation (“LBK”) and, as to 31,911,701 shares by MMW
Holding Corporation (“MMW?”). Both of LBK and MMW were
wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

Ms. Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares
through the interests of her spouse, Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by LBK Holding Corporation which was
wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by MMW Holding Corporation which
was wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held in the capacity of investment manager.
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R T 2 ERIRAGTEZ ZFEAN o AR A #
FRREAS AR — MR R A2 Z 4k
N o WO R P A % S B RE AR o

b s g S EENIGE D A e R S
et (HH 1,650,000 B B A 25 40 BR A =2
WERR) > WOt B Fr L B 2 S o

% % BE %% J3 M Ardley Enterprises Limited
DSZREANB A o % SR T A A vl o
AP P i Z AR R A

Bt P L 26 A B 2 B AL A IR M 2

135,969,133 /% M 47 HILBK Holding
Corporation ([LBK1) % & » 1fi 31,911,701
& & 4y HMMW Holding Corporation
(TMMW ) ¥4 ° LBK J&x MMW i [ 2 #
¥ B e AR o

SO B PR A 2 BB S A R A RS S
JBet > SRR R A % S B Z WA

% % BE % 1 LBK Holding Corporation ¥
> HATF HAEFBEE 2GR -

%% HE#E B MMW Holding Corporation
i > HATF HARFBEE 2GR -

% SR DB R R AT o

ARREEBBRAT -2014 £ 67



Directors’ Report
EERWE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) These interests were held by Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited
(“Arisaig Asia”) of which Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited
(“Arisaig Partners”) was the investment manager. Arisaig Partners
was wholly-owned by Arisaig Partners (Holdings) Limited which
in turn was wholly-owned by Skye Partners Limited. Skye Partners
Limited was owned as to 33.33% by Mr. Lindsay William Ernest
Cooper.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company are long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
recorded no other interests or short positions in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company.
Continuing Connected Transactions

Master Franchise Agreement with illy

On 14 November 2007, Café de Espressamente illy (HK) Limited
(“Café de Espressamente illy”), an indirectly non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Master Franchise
Agreement with illycaffe SpA (“illy”) for exclusive franchises to
develop, open and operate retail outlets in Hong Kong and Macau
(other than certain locations in Macau) for a period of ten years
from the date of the agreement and be automatically renewed for
another ten years unless otherwise notified by either party of its

intention not to renew the same.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Master Franchise Agreement with illy (Continued)

Prior to the Merger (as hereinafter defined), Café de Espressamente
illy was owned by Vogue Asia Limited, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and illy Bar Concept SpA (“illy Bar
Concept”) in the proportion of 70% and 30% respectively. illy
Bar Concept became the substantial shareholder of Café de
Espressamente illy by acquiring the interest from its related
company, illycaffe Asia Pacific Limited (“illycaffe Asia Pacific”) in
October 2009 (the “Transfer”). illy was an associate (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of illycaffe Asia Pacific and illy Bar Concept

at the time before and after the Transfer respectively.

In June 2011, Café de Espressamente illy received notice from illy
that it merged with illy Bar Concept in August 2010 (“Merger”). As
a result of the Merger, the rights and obligations of illy Bar Concept
in Café de Espressamente illy were vested in illy. illy then became
a substantial shareholder of Café de Espressamente illy after the

Merger.

The transactions contemplated under the Master Franchise
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the Master Franchise
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
14 November 2007.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the amount paid or payable
to illy or its associate under the Master Franchise Agreement
amounted to approximately HK$481,000 and did not exceed the
annual cap of HK$35,000,000.
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(H Ry A W] 2 2 ¥ W8 4~ W) Killy Bar
Concept SpA ([illy Bar Concept]) 43 Jill ¥
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FRIAA A 1) H B B A 7 illycaffe Asia
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TR o AREE B AR R 2 - illy %
L W A% 43 3 %% illycaffe Asia Pacific K illy
Bar Concept FJHH 8 A1z o
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Framework Agreement and Supplemental Agreement with
Fung Yuen

@)

70

The Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company Limited
(“Fung Yuen”) entered into a non-exclusive framework
agreement dated 21 April 2011 (“2011 Framework Agreement”)
which governed the terms upon which Fung Yuen and its
subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would be engaged by the
Group to conduct interior decoration, renovation, adjustment,
repairing, maintenance and/or related projects (the”Renovation
Transactions”) for the period from 21 April 2011 to 31 March

2014 subject to the following annual caps:

21 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 HK$55,000,000
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 HK$68,000,000
1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 HK$85,000,000

FungYuen Group is a connected person of the Company as Mr.
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms.
Lo Pik Ling, Anita (both being Directors of the Company), is
deemed to have a majority control in Fung Yuen Group. Thus
the Renovation Transactions constitute continuing connected

transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2011 Framework Agreement were disclosed in

the Company’s announcement dated 21 April 2011.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Framework Agreement and Supplemental Agreement with

Fung Yuen (Continued)

(b) On 4 October 2011, the Company announced that a
supplemental agreement was entered into between the
Company and Fung Yuen to amend the terms of the 2011
Framework Agreement to bring it in line with the policies and
procedures of awarding contracts so that the Company could
award the services to Fung Yuen Group other than by way of

tender (the”Supplemental Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, (i) “Minor Works”
will cover transactions with a final contract sum of HK$300,000
or more so long as the initial contract sum before the
commencement of work is less than HK$300,000 or equivalent;
and (ii) where the Board considers appropriate and in the
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole,
including circumstances where services are required on an
urgent basis or unexpectedly such that it may not be feasible or
may not be in the interest of the Group to award such services
by tender, the Group may also award services to the FungYuen
Group on normal commercial terms and arm’s length basis but
not necessarily by tender. Save as disclosed above, all of the
provisions and the annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions that may be conducted under the 2011 Framework

Agreement remain unchanged.

Details of the Supplemental Agreement were disclosed in the

Company’s announcement dated 4 October 2011.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate value in respect of
the Renovation Transactions under the 2011 Framework Agreement
and the Supplemental Agreement amounted to approximately
HK$15,203,000, including approximately HK$3,212,000 for the
Minor Works and did not exceed the annual cap of HK$85,000,000.
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Directors’ Report
EERWE

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Framework Agreement and Supplemental Agreement with
Fung Yuen (Continued)

(©

72

The Company and Fung Yuen entered into a non-exclusive
framework agreement dated 27 February 2014 (“2014
Framework Agreement”) to renew the 2011 Framework
Agreement for a further term of three years from 1 April 2014
to 31 March 2017 subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 HK$45,000,000

1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

HK$57,000,000

1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 HK$75,000,000

Details of the 2014 Framework Agreement were disclosed in

the Company’s announcement dated 27 February 2014.

Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2014
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Annual Review
The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and

confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:
(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement(s) governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules”issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the

Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report
EERWE

Related Party Transactions

The continuing connected transactions under the Master Franchise
Agreement with illy also constituted related party transactions
which, among other transactions, are set out in Note 38(a) to the

consolidated financial statements

Apart from the above, other related party transactions set out in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements (other than the
transactions relating to the operating lease rentals paid to a related
party, which constituted continuing connected transactions but
were exempted from the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected

transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Changes in Information of Directors

The changes in information of Directors since the publication of the
Company’s 2013 Interim Report are set out below pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (“Mr. Chan”)

Mr. Chan has been appointed as a member of Sustainability
Advisory Committee of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust
(Whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) with
effect from 1 January 2014. Mr. Chan has also been appointed as
a member of the Task Force on Promotion of Vocational Education
with effect from 1 June 2014.

The Company has renewed its service contract with Mr. Chan as
the Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director for a term
of two years from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2016, under which the
annual service fee of Mr. Chan has been increased from HK$960,000
to HK$1,060,000.
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Changes in Information of Directors (Continued)

Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita (“Ms. Lo”)

The Company has renewed its service contract with Ms. Lo as the
Group General Manager for a term of two years from 1 April 2014
to 31 March 2016, under which the annual salary and allowance of
Ms. Lo has been increased from HK$970,920 to HK$1,012,200. Ms.
Lo is also entitled to annual profit sharing bonus and discretionary
business target bonus. Ms. Lo remains to be entitled to an annual
director’s fee of HK$50,000.

Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter (“Mr. Lo”)

Mr. Lo has been promoted as the Managing Director (Business
Development) of the Group with effect from 1 April 2014 and a
new service contract has been entered with Mr. Lo, under which his
annual salary has been increased from HK$840,000 to HK$1,320,000
with effect from the same date. Mr. Lo is also entitled to annual
profit sharing bonus and discretionary business target bonus. Mr. Lo

remains to be entitled to an annual director’s fee of HK$50,000.

Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael (“Mr. Choi”)
Mr. Choi ceased to act as a member of the Long Term Housing

Strategy Steering Committee in March 2014.

Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert (“Mr. Au”)
Mr. Au retired as a member of the Air Transport Licensing Authority
in Hong Kong with effect from 31 July 2013.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued shares were held by the public as at the date
of this report.

EZEREE (H)

gLt ((H&t))

A2 ] O B AR L A A I R AR
ZMBEEH - H_F—NFENH—HEZ
F=ANFE=ZHA=Z1T—H > BHmWE - R
P AR - B AR R
970,920 ¥t L i % 1,012,200 #C - ket
75 AT WA BE R 4 EAB AL K W15 K 45 H
PREAGAL o & £ 45 W] 24 50,000 # T Z 4F
PEH R4 o

HEPSR e A (RSB A: )

AR R AR Y H — HORTHE R A
S Z AT B (GEB A0 R ) M BT B
R o MR IR B A &0 > AR B Z AR IR
[f] H & Hy 840,000 # 7t L i % 1,320,000 #
TG o AR A I AT WOIRAR BE AT 2y AR AL I
P 6 460 HBRABAL AR5 A3 T 524750,000
WL e -

SR A: (T46584: 1)
BRI R H R RIE R
BRMEELETRY -

ol 58 2 (T Sl 2z 1)

WG W RS b S R R
W A MR Y

RANREFRE

R AR 24 7 75k 2 8 B Rk A B 0 o

R RAHE B RAF CBITRG
BB A 25% HABRNLFFA

RREEBBMRAT -2014 F3 75



Directors’ Report
EERWE

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R GRS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the

Shareholders of Café De Coral Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 80
to 200, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R GRS

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R GRS

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 March 2014 R=-ZE-—-N&=A=+—H

31 March 31 March
2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E-=F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
Note HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BtaF FET FET
ASSETS BiE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE TR T ihfF AE 6 91,380 94,411
Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREZE 7 1,720,324 1,672,430
Investment properties REYE 8 439,600 385,000
Intangible assets B ERE 9 43,417 111,579
Investments in associates REE N ERE 11 1,190 11,780
Investments in joint ventures REELQTRE 2 19,772 24,372
Deferred income tax assets EERIEEE 20 26,562 24,320
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE 13 522,516 451,087
Non-current prepayments and deposits ERBFENRIERIRE 14 248,652 268,633
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEYABRR
through profit or loss ZERMEE 17 7,777 33,094
3,126,190 3,076,706
Current assets MENEE
Inventories E7E 15 211,759 204,548
Trade and other receivables EERHAEWERTE 16 79,660 147,671
Prepayments and deposits FEAREREZS 16 106,921 124,966
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEYABRER
through profit or loss ZERMEE 17 8,067 56,077
Bank deposits with maturity HEBR=EAEHA
over three months HERITER 18 31,010 31,076
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEHEER 18 1,004,093 772,694
1,441,510 1,337,032
Total assets HWEE 4,567,700 4,413,738
EQUITY R HE
Capital and reserves attributable to ARATREZFEA
the equity holders of the Company BRI fEE
Share capital [N 22 57,730 57,407
Other reserves HibfEE 23 1,286,806 1,164,384
Retained earnings {REBEF) 23
— Proposed dividends - BRI E 295,168 419,790
— Others —HAh 2,089,696 1,907,793
3,729,400 3,549,374
Non-controlling interests FEIEHI MRS 3,155 2,271
Total equity PR HE4ARE 3,732,555 3,551,645
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE AR &R

As at 31 March 2014 R=-ZE-—-N&=A=+—H

31 March 31 March
2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E-=F
=A=+-8 =A=+-8
Note HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BtaF FET FET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EERIBEEE 20 30,458 31,616
Provision for long service payments RERESRE 19 22,850 19,680
Retirement benefit liabilities ERESEFNEE 19 7,483 25,670
| S 76,966
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade payables EEREERIE 21 208,844 179,103
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HibEFEREREFTER 534,867 563,216
Current income tax liabilities BNERAFiIEEE 30,643 42,808
774,354 785,127
Total liabilities weEd 835,145 862,093
Total equity and liabilities BEREEHARE 4,567,700 4.413,738
Net current assets BEREEE 667,156 551,905
Total assets less current liabilities HEEBRBER 3,793,346 3,628,611

The notes on pages 88 to 200 are an integral part of these — fE5 88 5200 H Z Bl il 2 A A7 £ 4 5 i iy 4%
consolidated financial statements. HEHER A -

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2014 and were ~ #83E# R it & — 4N H =+ 4 H it LR

signed on its behalf: RERRRE
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Ev HIEBATE
BR A8 AR
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Statement of Financial Position

B AR IR AR

As at 31 March 2014 R=-ZE-—-N&=A=+—H

31 March 31 March
2014 2013
—E—MF —E-=F
=HA=+—H =A=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RFBRBRE 10 1,368,126 1,341,605
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FEIRIE - Be
other current assets REMRBEE 740 731
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEER 18 563 193
1,303 924
Total assets HWEE 1,369,429 1,342,529
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to AATREFEA
the equity holders of the Company Bl RAR FE
Share capital [N 22 57,730 57,407
Other reserves HibfEE 23 738,288 693,017
Retained earnings REBHEF) 23
— Proposed dividends - EORERE 295,168 419,790
— Others - Htb 278,199 171,850
Total equity PR EXA%E 1,369,385 1,342,064
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities RBaE
Other creditors and accrued liabilities Hi S BRIE R FEFTE A 44 465
Total equity and liabilities BREREEEEE 1,369,429 1,342,529
Net current assets FEREEE 1,259 459
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 1,369,385 1,342,064

The notes on pages 88 to 200 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2014 and were

signed on its behalf:

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
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Consolidated Income Statement - sy Function of Expense

e (= y
MEIERER —naAvesE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ—Z—NF=A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E-=F
Note HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BtaF FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue = 24 6,990,463 6,394,089
Cost of sales SHERA 26 (5,971,366) (5,485,896)
Gross profit EX 1,019,097 908,193
Other gains, net HiF s 25 19,099 61,319
Administrative expenses THEHR 26 (358,683) (329,003)
Operating profit EEEN 679,513 640,509
Finance income 23 ON 27 12,989 10,966
Share of profit/(loss) of associates (LB N EER, (BE) 213 (4,243)
Share of loss of joint ventures EheE A ATEE (3,958) (5,987)
Profit before income tax BREL AR R 688,757 641,245
Income tax expense FrSHEH 28 (106,677) (100,282)
Profit for the year RERE R 582,080 540,963
Allocated as: PEAE
Profit attributable to FEfEESIE RS
non-controlling interests FEAEER 884 1,000
Profit attributable to equity holders RATREFEA
of the Company R 29 581,196 539,963
Dividends BRE 30 393,189 517,204
Earnings per share for profit attributable to ~ ANEEAQTREZEA
the equity holders of the Company B EF g &R
during the year
— Basic - &R 31 HK$1.0158 T HK$0.94 38 7T
— Diluted -8 31 HK$1.0058 7T HK$0.94 38 7T

The notes on pages 88 to 200 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REZEBAREK

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ—Z—NF=A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=fF
HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year REE R 582,080 540,963
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hib2EBA (BE) :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss BEBH T EA B2 HE
Exchange differences arising from HIgEINGE AT C BE LT
translation of foreign subsidiaries, ReagNmzERERE
associates and a joint venture (13,015) 5,458
Reserve released upon disposal of HEREE QT
investment in an associate REfMBHNHE (2,763) -
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHEESRERE
financial assets WD ERA 71,438 38,649
Reserve released upon disposal of HETHBESRHERE
available-for-sale financial assets 2L e 3) (581)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently TEEEEN 7B EER
to profit or loss ZIEH
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation AERMNETNEHZ 15,852 (22,632)
Total comprehensive income for the year REFHAZEIRA 653,589 561,857
Attributable to: B
— Equity holders of the Company - ARATBREFEA 652,705 560,857
— Non-controlling interests — SEIEBIME R 884 1,000
653,589 561,857

The notes on pages 88 to 200 are an integral part of these  7E4 88 2 200 H Z it ik 2 A A% & W B i o iy 42

consolidated financial statements. A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=Z—

ME=ZA=1+—HILLFE

idated Statement of Changes in Equity

Non-
controlling
Share Other Retained interests Total
capital reserves  earnings Total 3JEIZ=HIMH equity
AR HinfEE REEF st xR AT
HK$'000 HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance as at 1 April 2013 R-E—=FNB—H4&s 57407 1,164,384 2,327,583 3,549,374 2,271 3,551,645
Profit for the year AREEmF - - 581,196 581,196 884 582,080
Other comprehensive Hib2mUBA(EE)
income/(loss):
Exchange differences arising #E#ESNHMB AT -
from translation of foreign HENTIREE AT
subsidiaries, associates ZERERE
and a joint venture - (13,015) - (13,015) - (13,015)
Reserve released upon HHEREZE QT
disposal of investment in REFEENEHE
an associate - (2,763) - (2,763) - (2,763)
Remeasurement of defined ~ REBRNEEHNEHTE
benefit obligation - - 15,852 15,852 - 15,852
Transfer to statutory reserves B E LT - 21,494 (21,494) - - -
Fair value gains on AHHESREERN
available-for-sale AT EEF
financial assets - 71,438 - 71,438 - 71,438
Reserve released upon HAHETHEESRHEE
disposal of Pt
available-for-sale
financial assets - 3) - 3) - 3)
Total comprehensive income  Z2ZEURA - 77,151 575,554 652,705 884 653,589
Proceeds from shares issued  Z24TRR 13 2 FT B K 323 43,183 - 43,506 - 43,506
Employee share option EERRFESTE
scheme-value of - EEREER
employee services - 2,140 - 2,140 - 2,140
Transfer upon lapse of RIS RS
share options - (52) 52 - - -
Dividends ®’E - - (518,325)  (518,325) - (518,325)
Balance as at R-Z2—NF
31 March 2014 =A=+—B#&% 57,730 1,286,806 2,384,864 3,729,400 3,155 3,732,555
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREREER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=Z—

nv-ﬁ
ME=B=+—ALEE

Non-
controlling
Share Other Retained interests Total
capital reserves  earnings Total 3JEIZ=HIMH equity
AR HinfEE REEF st Em REEE
HK$'000 HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance as at 1 April 2012 n= “HEMB—H4&s 56,956 1,057,413 2,163,442 3,277,811 1,271 3,279,082
Profit for the year (restated) ZARFREEF) (EH) - - 539,963 539,963 1,000 540,963
Other comprehensive Hib2mB A
income/(loss): (F1E) -
Exchange differences arising #E#ESNHMB AT -
from translation of foreign HENTIREE AT
subsidiaries, associates ZERERE
and joint ventures - 5,458 - 5,458 - 5,458
Remeasurement of defined ~ HRERBREE
benefit obligation (restated) AIEFHHE (EH) - - (22,632) (22,632) - (22,632)
Fair value gains on AfHESREE
available-for-sale DB
financial assets - 38,649 - 38,649 - 38,649
Reserve released upon RAEETHEESREE
disposal of g fhE
available-for-sale
financial assets - (581) - (581) - (581)
Total comprehensive income  ZAZEURA - 43,526 517,331 560,857 1,000 561,857
Proceeds from shares issued ~ Z4TAR1D 2 FT18 K 451 61,307 - 61,758 - 61,758
Employee share option BERRIFETE
scheme-value of - EERBER
employee services - 3,722 - 3,722 - 3,722
Transfer upon lapse of RS mER
share options - (1,584) 1,584 - - -
Dividends BE - - (354,774)  (354,774) - (354,774)
Balance as at R-ZE—=%F
31 March 2013 =A=+—H#&k 57,407 1,164,384 2,327,583 3,549,374 2,271 3,551,645

The notes on pages 88 to 200 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

B o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nV-.F EE%/}ILE%‘:Z

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ=Z—

ME=ZA=1+—HILLFE

2014 2013
—E-mEF —
Note HK$ 7000 HK$7000
Bt FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEERZEERE
Net cash generated from operations EEELECZFRS 33(a) 953,161 791,976
Hong Kong profits tax paid 2B BFEH (108,138) (84,954)
Overseas taxation paid [EEEPZ =3NS (14,994) (12,199)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEE£BELZFRSE 830,029 694,823
Cash flows from investing activities ?xia}iﬁib ZBRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment KRB - MERRE (312,028) (491,359)
Proceeds from disposals of property, tﬂ’i%% HE
plant and equipment RERBEREBR 33(b) 71,644 6,929
Dividend received from associates 2R E N RIRE 204 753
Dividend received from listed investments B ERRERE 13,267 13,213
Purchase of financial assets BEEmERE (6,333) (31,161)
Proceeds from redemption/disposal of BE, HERHEE
available-for-sale financial assets EHMEEER 17 5,568
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ HEZRAFPEIAEBRER
at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEEMER 82,627 15,515
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HEBE N RESMER
an associate 14,490 5,776
Proceeds from disposal of investment in HESE RATAREMBR
a joint venture 411 -
Capital injection for investment in REGEQNTRIZERITE
a joint venture - (23,000)
Interest received 2z E 12,488 10,308
Increase in bank deposits with maturity s =18 R 2E A
over three months HERITERK - (43)
Net cash used in investing activities ARRETE2FRE (123,213) (487,501)
Cash flows from financing activities METB2EERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares TERRSEMZRITRD
upon exercise of share options ZF)ﬂE’ RIEFEE 43,506 61,758
Dividends paid 2TRE (518,325) (354,774)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBETE 2 FRe (474,819) (293,016)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReEkREEHEER
and cash equivalents 2B, G 231,997 (85,694)
Cash and cash equivalents at FEHRRFRE
the beginning of the year RIRE&ZEEEE 772,694 854,417
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MBS R o SO (598) 3,971
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FEARKRS
of the year FIR&ZEEE 18 1,004,093 772,694

The notes on pages 88 to 200 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R

88

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda with limited
liability on 1 October 1990. The address of its registered
office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the operation of quick service restaurants,
fast casual dining, institutional catering and specialty
restaurant chains, and food processing and distribution
business.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2014.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
ra

2.1

BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

New standards and amendments to standards adopted
by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and currently
relevant to the Group.

HKEFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements’ builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control
as the determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements of
the parent company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. The Group assessed the
adoption of this standard and concluded that it did not
result in any changes in the consolidated status of its
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R

90

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments to standards adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKERS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ focuses on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangement
rather than its legal form. There are two types of joint
arrangements: joint operations and joint ventures.
Joint operations arise where the investors have rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of an
arrangement. A joint operator accounts for its share
of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint
ventures arise where the investors have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement and are accounted for
under the equity method. Proportional consolidation of
joint arrangements is no longer permitted. The Group
assessed the adoption of this standard and concluded
that it did not have a significant impact on the Group’s
results and financial position except that certain new
disclosures are introduced.

HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The requirements do not
extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use
is already required or permitted by other standards
within HKFRSs. The Group has adopted this standard,
which additional disclosures required in respect of fair
value measurements are introduced. The adoption of
this standard has no significant impact on the Group’s
results and financial position, except that certain new
disclosures are introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1
@

BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments to standards adopted
by the Group (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 1, ‘Financial statement
presentation’, includes changes in presentation of other
comprehensive income. The main change resulting
from this amendment is a requirement for entities to
group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’
(“OCI”) on the basis of whether they are potentially re-
classifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). The Group has categorised “Exchange
differences arising from translation”, ‘Reserve released
upon disposal of investment in an associate’, ‘Reserve
released upon disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets” and ‘Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets’ under ‘items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss’, while ‘Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation” under ‘items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BTSRRI AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments to standards adopted

by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 19 (revised 2011), “Employee benefits’ which
the Group has applied the standard retrospectively
in accordance with the transition provisions of the
standard. Such new standard replaces the interest cost
and expected return on plan assets with a net interest
amount that is calculated by applying the discount
rates to the net defined benefit liability or asset. This
has no effect on total comprehensive income as the
increased charge in profit or loss would be offset by
a credit in other comprehensive income. In addition,
the new standard also introduced a new term called
“remeasurement”, which is made up of actuarial gains
and losses as the difference between actual investment
returns and the return implied by the net interest cost.
The impact of this new accounting standard has been
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The adoption of this standard leads to
the following changes on the Group’s prior year’s
consolidated financial statements:

- Increase in cost of sales and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 March 2013 by HK$4,984,000.

- Increase in other comprehensive income in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2013 by
HK$4,984,000.

The adoption of this standard has no impact on the
amount of retirement benefit assets/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position, as
well as the consolidated statement of cash flows.

There are no other new standards or amendments and
interpretations to standards that are effective for the first
time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April
2013 that are expected to have a material impact on the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1
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BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2013 and have not been early
adopted.

2.1
(i)

ERSTHEREE (&)

fm I 2L 2 ()

T F s TR R ARG TR K
R HIERR ZF-=4FENA—H
B &ty 1y B R A R B D A 2k > AR JE SR LR
e

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after

FEHBEBKN
ZHEEM
Amendment to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1July2014
BBEEEER 19 285 RERAGE : EEMH —ZE-NEtA—H
Amendment to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
EBGTHER 32 2185 HiHemEEHESmEE —ZE—MFE—HA—H
Amendment to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures For Non-Financial Assets 1 January 2014
BBETTER 36 21837 FemEEZIKREEEEE —Z-NE—F—H
Amendment to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014
BEBEEAER 39 2 &85 THEIAFEBRENETHEACEE —ZE-NE—HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures 1 January 2015
EBUBREENTR BHEEMARRBERE —E-H¥—HF—H
BB KM ELER 9 2185
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015
BRIERELEDI $@MTA —Z-H¥—AF—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
BB KR ELELD 14 EEIRLRE —E-X"¥—HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities 1 January 2014
and HKAS 27 (2011)
BEEVKBREEN 0 - BEEMERE REER —E-—NF—HF—H
R 12 REBGTHER 27(2011) 2185]
HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014
BERMEREREBEES BE —ZE-NE—HF—H
-REBE2R
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2012 1July2014
FEIESTE 2012 FEBGE —Z-NEtA—H
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2013 1July2014
FERESTE 2013 FEGE —ZE-NEtA—H

The Group has commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new, amended and revised HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether they would
have a significant impact of its results of operations and
financial position.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated financial statements
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to‘share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method’in the income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated financial statements
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The group’s investments in
joint ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the group’s share of the net fair value of
the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint

ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the group.
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BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the income statement within ‘finance income or
cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the income statement.
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BTSRRI AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences relating
to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in
the income statement, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equity held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
income statement as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial

assets, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;
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BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations
are taken to shareholders’ equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to profit

or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the group’s ownership interest in associates or joint
ventures that do not result in the group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised

in equity.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Cost represents consideration paid for rights to use the
land on which various plants and buildings are situated.
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
leases.

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment, except for freehold
land and construction in progress (Note 2.7), are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Freehold land is stated at historical
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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R R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 EEEWBXREE(HE)
Policies (Continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.6 Y% - BENRRME (E)

No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified = Shorter of remaining period
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B AR AR AR T

as finance lease of the lease or useful life A ERERZ
Ly
Building 2.5% M 2.5%
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining period ik S 5 T AL
of the lease
Plant and machinery 10% 5 B e 10%
Furniture and 12.5%-33.3% RIS 12.5%-33.3%

other equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of the reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. They are
included in the consolidated income statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment
and leasehold improvements under construction.
Construction in progress is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction and acquisition, and capitalised
costs attributable to the construction during the period
of construction. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended
use. When the assets concerned are available for use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
in Note 2.6.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and
buildings. Land held under operating leases are
classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property
is met. The operating leases are accounted for as if they
were finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with Valuation
Standards on Properties issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by
external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including
contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated

income statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share in net
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary or joint venture or associate at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
joint ventures or associates is included in investments in
joint venture or associates and is tested for impairment
as part of the overall balance. Separately recognised
goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate costs of other intangible
assets over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 20 years.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures, associates, and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, but are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets which are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial
assets and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of reporting date. These are classified as
non-current assets. Trade and other receivables are
classified as loans and receivables in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Note 2.13).

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the
Group were to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category
would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale
financial assets. Held-to-maturity financial assets are
included in non-current assets, except for those with
maturities of less than 12 months from the end of
reporting date. These are classified as current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the end of reporting
date.
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2.11

BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the income statement
within other gains, net, in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the securities and other changes in
the carrying amount of the securities. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognised in
the income statement; translation differences on non-
monetary securities are recognized in equity. Changes in
the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.11

EESEEREE (H)

THEE (&)

AR M Y < b ) O St B - 3R
32 5y H (R A 52 0 7 s WA O o o B
B H ) #ER o BEIHH WP %A T
AR - S hn B AT S S 3 TR S B
DN 2 2 Y < O 2 AR B JRAR o
B 2 1R I R - KA S A
AR AR ST B o BACKE A % B
W 4 e R 2 0 B
> BOREE I OOR B B B R TR
JE o [ RS > B A
7 o WAt B G R A AR A P BI A
HIERZ B EILRIE N TS -
Bk R WO I M 5 B H 2 4 i
7 AR DL BT B R R 3 0 A R A 7
HE o

0 TR A A A\ 28 38 2 5 il B
RSP B ) > BT A B MR M
RS B 2 0 N A 1R A R S [ 3L fth 3
Wedh | o $A PRSI AR 25 7 Z 5 il B
T T A R RSB T ZA  J MTBR JE 1 e
AR e 7 B 7 4 i R PR i R 2 A AL 2
— Ry o

wnDASNIE HE B o3 S A AT B 2 BN
it IR A VS > SR TR O A
B B A 3 7 P W 40O 2 T L O MR
i At 52 B DA T 0 T - B R IRZ
HAERRHAE LR - MiE W R IFZ
B 22 WU RE 25 AR GE o 2 U T ik iy
BN R R MR B T R 2 AT
B > S A A E N R R o

ARREEBBMRAT -2014 £ 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.11

BTSRRI AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as “gains and losses from investment
securities”. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset
is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and

relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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2.11

2.12

BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at end of each reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the
case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed
from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. Impairment testing of trade and
other receivables is described in Note 2.13.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost comprises costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
selling expenses.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

BTSRRI AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement within administrative
expenses. When a trade and other receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade and other receivable. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2.16

2.17

BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2.18

BTSRRI AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2.18

2.19

(i)

(iif)

BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax and discounts, and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration of the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Sales of food and beverages
Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the consolidated
income statement at the point of sale to customers.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Royalty and franchise income

Royalty and franchise income are recognised on an
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements.
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BTSRRI AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised when
services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.20 Employee benefits

(@)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments
are recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are
expected to be settled within 12 months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.
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2.20
(iii)

BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The
schemes are generally funded through payments to
insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The Group
has both defined benefit and defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit
plans typically define an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised
past-service costs. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in full in the period in which they occur,
outside the income statement, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2.20
(iii)

(iv)

BTSRRI AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the
income statement, unless the changes to the pension
plan are conditional on the employees remaining in
service for a specified period of time (the vesting period).
In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of
their employment or retirement when the employee
fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their services
in the current and prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method, discounted to present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting
date on high quality corporate bonds which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related
liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the
period in which they occur, outside the income statement,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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BATSERAR AL

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Company. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted: (i) including any
market performance conditions; (ii) excluding the impact
of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investments in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantees at inception, but
performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its net liability regarding the financial
guarantee with the amount that would be required
if the financial guarantee to result in a present legal
or constructive obligation. If the liability is less than
its present legal or constructive obligation amount,
the entire difference is recognised in the consolidated

income statement immediately.
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Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group, no
hedging activities are undertaken by management.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and North America and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”),
United States (“US”) dollar and Canadian dollar.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

Management has a policy to require group companies
to manage their foreign exchange risks against their
respective functional currencies. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arisen from sales and purchases
made by relevant group companies in currencies other
than their own functional currencies. The Group also
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign exchange exposure.
The Group has not used any hedging arrangement to
hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within
the Group are mainly denominated in the respective
company’s functional currency, Directors are of the
opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits against
changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would
not be significant.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for bank deposits and debt securities, the income
and operating cash flows of which are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits and
debt securities at variable interest rate which are subject
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Directors are of the
opinion that any reasonable changes in interest rates
would not result in a significant change in the Group’s
results. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented
for interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated statement of financial position either as
available-for-sale financial assets or financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded,
the fair value is determined with reference to quoted
market prices. For the Group’s financial assets that are
not publicly traded, the Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
reporting date.

As at 31 March 2014, if the price of the listed securities
(available-for-sale financial assets) has increased/
decreased by 10% with all other variables being held
constant, the Group’s investment reserve would
have increased/decreased by HK$52,252,000 (2013:
HK$45,109,000).
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
mainly arises from bank balances and deposits, rental
deposits, debt securities and trade and other receivables.
The carrying amount of these balances in the statement
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

Majority of the Group’s bank balances and, deposits
and derivative financial instruments are placed in those
banks and financial institutions which are independently
rated with high credit ratings. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these banks
and financial institutions as they have no default history
in the past.

The credit quality of the landlords and debtors is
assessed based on the financial position of the landlords
as well as past experience of the Group in dealing with
the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with
appropriate credit histories and credit terms are granted
to reliable debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of deposits and receivables falls within
recorded allowance and the Directors are of the opinion
that adequate provision for uncollectible receivable has
been made.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
bank balances and deposits were mainly deposited in
over ten financial institutions with good credit ratings,
and the Group has a large number of counterparties for
rental deposits, trade and other receivables. Management
does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available credit facilities. The Group
continues to maintain a healthy net cash position by
keeping credit lines available and to maintain flexibility
in future funding.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are payments
for trade and other payables and operating expenses. The
Group mainly finances its working capital requirements
through internal resources.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash balances and adequate credit
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long-term.

As at 31 March 2014, all of the Group’s financial
liabilities were due within 12 months and equal their
carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Capital risk management (Continued)

Total capital of the Group is calculated as “capital
and reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company” less total borrowings, if any. Management
considers that the Group’s capital risk is minimal as
there is no borrowing as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2014.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair value, by valuation method. The difference levels
have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Ievel 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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AT RRMEE

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HMBERREE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMHE(E)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets ARPEEPR T NEZH =+ HIEA
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2014: FEFH R A RE RSN T
Level 1 Level 2 Total
R EHR st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets B=E
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESRERE
— Listed investments - tHEE 522,516 - 522,516
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIT A - 15,844 15,844
Total financial assets measured BRATVESENESRERE
at fair value 522,516 15,844 538,360
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets AREEPR R -ZEEH = HERA
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2013: FEFH R A RE RSN T
Level 1 Level 2 Total
R B st
HK$7000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Assets E=E
Available-for-sale financial assets AHtHEEREE
— Listed investments -tHmERE 451,087 - 451,087
Derivative financial instruments fTESmMITA - 39,278 39,278
Investment portfolio wREAE
— Debt investments - BRERE - 8,644 8,644
— Equity securities -BRBES 40,770 - 40,770
— Others - HAth - 479 479
Total financial assets measured BEAFEFENAESHEE
at fair value 491,857 48,401 540,258
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

The carrying values less impairment provision of trade
and other receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units (“CGU”) have been determined
based on higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use determined using the discounted cash flow
method.

As described in Note 9, management have applied
certain estimates and assumptions (e.g. revenue
growth), in determining the recoverable amounts of
the North America CGU, which comprised most of the
goodwill of the Group. Any changes in the estimates and
assumptions used by the management would impact the
recoverable amount of the North American CGU which
may affect the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and intangible
assets (other than goodwill)

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights, and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on the higher
of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

128 Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2014

BAR RS Bl B 2 H

AR TR AR AR Al 5 B AR st o A P
B R AR AR 2 2 A LA B A R
M o AR — B BoAFE B A ORI > H
2 R B A M T A R K Bl
wt BB T OB -

AENRE

ACKR P AR S MR B IR 5 2.9 &t
By P R HEAT WA P A o Bl A B
A2 By T WAL [ < AT L A P 2
JRA B DA s B 8 4 3 A 05 PR 1 i
B - WHZEAHERE -

MR CREZ 3 & - HEE R —
R Z A B S AR DAt S I S YN B 4 2
B 2 AT AT g (5 R A )
(EEBEAEE T E) o 49 Hg TR
A SRRSO B - SR
SEYN B 4 A B AL W I R - ACAR
A 2 B s R L B S A

MK BERRE HELHWEL
wERAEREFLEERE(BER
)

WA AT i S i 52 T8l S0 s i v R BB AL
] > ACHE 5 AL 3 BB ek
i~ AEE e e - b R % ST
(B ERAM) B AERE DL - TR T
e A G 5 B APl B A Ty
R > VR R o il 53 S A By
PeAdist



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
ra

(b)

BATSERAR AL

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill). The estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives. It will write off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable and amortisable lives
and therefore affect the depreciation and amortisation
charges in future periods.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Impairment of investments in associates and joint
ventures and amounts due from joint ventures

The Group makes provision for impairment of
investments in associates and joint ventures and
amounts due from joint ventures based on an
assessment of the future economic benefits of the
investments which will flow to the Group and the
collectability of the amounts due from joint ventures.
The identification of provisions requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of investments in associates
and joint ventures and amounts due from joint ventures
in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. The Group
recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward
not recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred
income tax assets in respect of tax losses are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

No deferred income tax assets are recognised when it
is uncertain whether there are sufficient future taxable
profits available before such tax losses expire where the
final outcome of these uncertainties are different from
the estimation, such differences will impact the carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets in the period in
which such determination is made.
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BATSERAR AL

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets

The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an
active market are determined by the quoted market
prices.

For fair values of financial assets not traded in an active
market, the methodologies, models, assumptions used in
determining the fair value of financial assets not traded
in an active market and derivative financial instruments
require judgement, which are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each reporting date.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value
with changes in the fair values recognised in income
statement. The Group obtains independent valuations at
least annually. At the end of each reporting period, the
management update their assessment of the fair value
of each property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations.

Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of
quick service restaurants, fast casual dining, institutional
catering and specialty restaurant chains, and food
processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the
Group’s internal reporting in order to allocate resources
amongst different segments. He assesses the business
principally from a geographical perspective including
Hong Kong, Mainland China and North America.
Segment result as presented below represents operating
profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
and impairment loss.

BARNSTHEE R ¥ E (&)
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AT RRMEE

Segment Information (Continued) 5 SDEERGE)
Segment information for the Group for the current year ACER B ACAE BEA PO BT i A U R 2
and comparative figures are as follows: I
Mainland North
Hong Kong China America Group
B AR E R it =M £8
HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$7000
FET FiET FiET FET
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-Z2—NF=A=+—H
IEFE
Total segment revenue Ha Bl 5,592,414 1,346,001 164,209 7,102,624
Inter-segment revenue (Note i)  ARERD UL (A1aEi) (3,231) (108,930) - (112,161)
Revenue (from external revenue) Uiz (2R B ShEfUA )

(Note ii) (BfaEii) 5,589,183 1,237,071 164,209 6,990,463
Segment result (Note iii) DEEELE (Bt i) 885,003 116,400 675 1,002,078
Depreciation and amortisation ER#E 191,256 66,346 16,200 273,802
Impairment loss of goodwill BEZBEER - - 45,979 45,979
Impairment loss of property, W« RERZEZREEE

plant and equipment - - 2,784 2,784
Finance income BRI A 8,525 4,175 289 12,989
Share of profit of an associate  FE{EEHE N BLEF] - - 213 213
Share of loss of joint ventures EheE QTS (3,882) (76) - (3,958)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrSR&A, (3EM) 98,251 12,171 (3,745) 106,677
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_Z—=F=H=1+—H

IEFE
Total segment revenue FEb el 5,076,765 1,233,471 194,201 6,504,443
Inter-segment revenue (Note i)  RERD HBULE (A13Ei) (2,948) (107,406) - (110,354)
Revenue (from external revenue) Wz (R B FhEfUkER)

(Note ii) (HiaEii) 5,073,817 1,126,071 194,201 6,394,089
Segment result (Note Jii), DAL (M)

(restated) (E%) 863,780 84,036 10,421 958,237
Depreciation and amortisation e R 175,365 64,590 16,638 256,593
Impairment loss of goodwill EEZREBE - - 48,232 48,232
Impairment loss of a joint venture &% 28 2 REEE - 3,700 - 3,700
Impairment loss of property, ¥ - BERZEZREESE

plant and equipment - 9,203 - 9,203
Finance income BrREUR A 7,230 3,638 98 10,966
Share of profit/(loss) of associates FE{LEEE N BEF, (EE) 387 (4,825) 195 (4,243)
Share of (loss)/profit of e AT (B58),5R

joint ventures (5,995) 8 - (5,987)
Income tax expense/(credit) FERER(KN) 90,447 12,611 (2,776) 100,282
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(i)

(iif)

BB SR
Segment Information (Continued) 5
Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the (i)

normal course of business.

The Group has a large number of customers. For the (i)
year ended 31 March 2014, no revenue was derived from
transactions with a single external customer representing

10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

Reconciliation of total segment results to total profit  (iii)
before income tax is as follows:

2RER (F)
PR A S T — BB SRR P T A o

AEMARAMBWEE - RRE-Z
—WE=ZH =+ HIREE > ARG
WA B R 2 2 S R A AR I 10%
B L IR o

AR5 JESE 10T SEL AR % BT 45 B i v ) ) SR
W

Group

rEHE
2014 2013

—E—-MF —g—-=

HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Segment results DEFEE 1,002,078 958,237
Depreciation and amortisation EREE (273,802) (256,593)
Impairment loss of goodwill BEZRESE (45,979) (48,232)
Impairment loss of a joint venture EEPAIZBERE - (3,700)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BMEKRE ZREEE (2,784) (9,203)
Operating profit EE R 679,513 640,509
Finance income e 3L PN 12,989 10,966
Share of profit/(loss) of associates FE(REE N BER, () 213 (4,243)
Share of loss of joint ventures EhEeEE ATREE (3,958) (5,987)
Profit before income tax BREFSBEADEF] 688,757 641,245
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e SRR MR

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 SDEERGE)
Mainland North
Hong Kong China America Group
& R A it b =M £8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_Z—NFE=RA=+—H
IEFE
Segment assets DEEE 3,028,204 835,457 139,117 4,002,778
Segment assets include: PEEEERE
Investments in associates REE N TRE - - 1,190 1,190
Investments in joint ventures REELNTRE 19,772 - - 19,772
Additions to non-current assets REBEIERBEE
(other than financial ($MTARIELFIE
instruments and deferred BERMN)
income tax assets) 323,119 63,225 6,153 392,497
Year ended 31 March 2013 BEZZ—=F=A=+—H
IEFE
Segment assets DEEE 2,819,095 814,867 215,198 3,849,160
Segment assets include: PREESE
Investments in associates REE N TRE - 10,577 1,203 11,780
Investments in joint ventures REELQTRE 23,726 646 - 24372
Additions to non-current assets RBIRBEE
(other than financial (R T AERIELERIE
instruments and deferred BERM)
income tax assets) 418,324 107,656 14,125 540,105

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s non-current assets

(other than financial instruments and deferred

income tax assets) that are located in Hong Kong,

the Mainland China and North America amounted
to HK$2,028,096,000 (2013: HK$1,905,781,000),
HK$459,529,000 (2013: HK$508,483,000) and
HK$81,711,000 (2013: HK$153,940,000), respectively.

134 Café de Coral Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2014

RoF—WE=ZH=+—H » KEH
RSN IERE Y A (ST A R
HE F JE B E BR A1) %% 2,028,096,000 #s T
(=% — =4 :1,905,781,000 % T ) >
B R B P9 R 459,529,000 #T (&
— Z4E 1 508,483,000 70 ) - BRI

M % 81,711,0008 I ( =&

153,940,000 #EIT) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

5 Segment Information (Continued)

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is

provided as follows:

TREFR (&)
Aoy R e B A A BRI T

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E—=F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total segment assets HAEERE 4,002,778 3,849,160
Deferred income tax assets EEFIBEE 26,562 24,320
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESRERE 522,516 451,087
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEIABZZSRERE
profit or loss 15,844 89,171
Total assets HEE 4.567,700 4.413,738
6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights S 1t 2+ b f5E A

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and

their net book values are analysed as follows:

ZA A5 L LB i % e 3 5 P R PO 2
0 TR A 288 7 AL Bk O S LR T R > 4
s :

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E—-F —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBER:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10 ZE50F8EN 50,113 51,614
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EEBRINGE ©
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10 ZE50F8EH 41,267 42,797
91,380 94,411

ARRBYEBBERDT - 2014 FH 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R

6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights 6 MHELwRImERRE(E)
(Continued)
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IE —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Beginning of the year FHHEER 94,411 97,143
Amortisation of leasehold land FAE T tth 2 1 1t {55 FA A 65
and land use rights (3,017) (3,014)
Exchange differences [ ERE (14) 282
End of the year FERER 91,380 94411
Amortisation expense of HK$3,017,000 (2013: S % 3,017,000 70 (=B —=4F
HK$3,014,000) has been charged to cost of sales. 3,014,000 #70 ) CEt ASHE A -
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RIS RRMEE

7  Property, Plant and Equipment 7 W¥E- BERRE
Group
AEME
Furniture
Leasehold and other
Land and improvements equipment Plantand Construction-
buildings e FRHME machinery in-progress Total
T RIEF BFRES Hithifs - WERMES EEIR HEE
(Note b)
(KiaEh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2012 NZIE—ZF
=ZA=+—~H
Cost 5% 717,393 859,988 1,313,378 59,742 215,836 3,166,337
Accumulated depreciation ZIERER
and impairment losses HEEE (143,114) (529,266) (986,874) (24,521) - (1,683,775)
Net book amount BREFE 574,279 330,722 326,504 35,221 215,836 1,482,562
Year ended 31 March HE-_Z—=F
2013 =B=+—H
IFFE
Opening net book amount & ¥ BRI FE 574,279 330,722 326,504 35,221 215,836 1,482,562
Additions wE 8,999 143,133 133,195 9,528 177,479 472,334
Disposals HE (9,170) (13,149) (10,134) (1,051) - (33,504)
Depreciation e (14,087) (103,724) (118,049) (7,977) - (243,837)
Impairment losses REEE - (7,766) (1,437) - - (9,203)
Transfer [Eb2 - - (18,218) 18,469 (251) -
Exchange differences ERES 1,787 1,260 466 563 2 4,078
Closing net book amount  F AR RMEIFE 561,808 350,476 312,327 54,753 393,066 1,672,430
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=%F
=BA=+-—H
Cost 5% 702,679 936,344 1,294,215 95,920 393,066 3,422,224
Accumulated depreciation EREIFTER
and impairment losses  JR{EESIE (140,871) (585,868) (981,888) (41,167) - (1,749,794)
Net book amount BRENFE 561,808 350,476 312,327 54,753 393,066 1,672,430
Year ended 31 March HE-Z—NF
2014 =BA=+-—H
IHEE
Opening net book amount  EF X1 EREIEE 561,808 350,476 312,327 54,753 393,066 1,672,430
Additions wE 9,633 145,032 128,771 43,378 1,062 327,876
Disposals HE - (7,077) (5,842) (130) - (13,049)
Depreciation e (22,323) (106,393) (118,826) (14,513) - (262,055)
Impairment losses REEE - (2,088) (696) - - (2,784)
Transfer i 363,041 - - 31,087 (394,128) -
Exchange differences EREZE (36) (1,294) (768) 4 - (2,094)
Closing net book amount  FARIREHE 912,123 378,656 314,966 114,579 - 1,720,324
At 31 March 2014 AZE—NF
=ZA=+—H
Cost 5% 1,075,186 1,014,130 1,315,658 169,075 - 3,574,049
Accumulated depreciation EREITER
and impairment losses HEEE (163,063) (635,474) (1,000,692) (54,496) - (1,853,725)
Net book amount BRENFE 912,123 378,656 314,966 114,579 - 1,720,324
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Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 7

W% - BEKR&E (&)

Depreciation expenses of HK$249,809,000 (2013: (a)  ##FI3249,809,00097C (=% —=4F
HK$233,545,000) and HK$12,246,000 (2013: 233,545,000 # 70 ) J% 12,246,000 # 7 (—
HK$10,292,000) has been charged to cost of sales and F—=4 110,292,000 %5T) B4 A
administrative expenses, respectively, while impairment B AR AT o WA H A A
loss has been charged to other gains, net (Note 25). Hopth gl as (P 25) o
The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows: ~ (b) ~ ASSGEH 3 LT AAHTAE -
Group
K EW
2014 2013
—F-mE —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net book value: SRMEFE -
Freehold land KAERE T b 14,811 14,811
Leasehold land classified as finance lease HELHh ) EAERERE 284,004 289,893
Buildings By 613,308 257,104
912,123 561,808

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group’s freehold
land was located outside Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s leasehold land
with net book value of HK$284,004,000 (2013:
HK$289,893,000) was located in Hong Kong under the

AEER T NFER R -ZFEH
= H B R SR A SERE L AR A
WA o

AREE D —F—WE=ZH=+—H#
AR A M 4 R i YA 284,004,000 ¥

JC (B —=4E 1 289,893,000 ¥ TT ) AL

following leases: HWRHES TN T
Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-0F —g2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leases of over 50 years S50F L EFRY 50,067 50,504
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10ZE50F4 233,937 239,389
284,004 289,893
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8 Investment Properties 8 REWXE
Group
REME
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=fF
HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FEER 385,000 326,200
Fair value gains (Note 25) NEEWE (BaF25) 54,600 58,800
End of the year FRERR 439,600 385,000

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by CB Richard Ellis Limited
(the “Valuer”), to determine the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. The
investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2014
and 2013. Fair value gains has been charged to other
gains, net (Note 25).

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
net book values are analysed as follows:

A £ # & ¥ % i CB Richard Ellis
Limited ([ 4 & B 1) & 47 % e A5 {5 > DA
MEREMER _F-NFER _FT—=
EEAZT—HHATE - BEDED
R -NER-FE A=A =1
H 8BS ME o A FER A O Fk A Al 5
Weas (FiEE25) ©

SR A 4% 0 3 M i R R i
SR

Group

TEE
2014 2013

—E—-MmEF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBEE:

Leases of over 50 years 50 F LA LA 137,000 121,000
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10 ZE50F8EH 302,600 264,000
439,600 385,000
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Investment Properties (Continued)
The following table analyses the investment properties
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

REWE (&)
TARM A E RS FES TR EY
*® o

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2014 using

R-E—NE=A=+—H
ZAFEFESRNER

Quoted prices

in active markets Significant other Significant
for identical assets observable unobservahle
EEEE inputs inputs
EERmE L HiEs JE T E 5
WRE WEXRBAE WEXBAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description it (E—%) (B=#) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements KEMENTETE
Investment properties: REWE
—Shops — Hong Kong -EH-FB - - 439,600

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

Valuation process of the Group

The Group measures its investment property at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment property
at 31 March 2014 has been determined on the basis
of valuation carried out by an independent qualified
valuer. The valuation is prepared in accordance with the
“HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (2012 Edition)”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the International
Valuation Standards (IVS).
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R R

Investment Properties (Continued)
Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as“the estimated amount for which
an asset or liability should exchange on the valuation
date between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing
and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under sales comparison method, fair value of the
investment property is derived from comparing the
property to be valued directly with other comparable
properties, which have recently transacted. However,
given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for
any qualitative differences that may affect the price likely
to be achieved by the property under consideration. The
most significant impact into this valuation approach is
price per square meter.

There was no change to the valuation technique with
that of prior year.

The Group reviews the valuation performed by
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
Discussion of valuation processes and results are held
between management and independent qualified valuer
once a year for financial reporting purpose.

REWE (&)
BB

KPR E 8 [ A E D5 52 A B 5
AT B T W HE AR B AT SR B > AR
%~ BEREAZEERRE TR AAEH
MEREERA R EHEE] -

MRS L > REWEZ ATPETS
VIt A i 2 Wy SR BRI 22 5 2 LAt T
P S AT BB LL I A5t o AR
HIR AW 3 2 M BRI - 38 % 8 A
H 0 R R > AT A AR A T RSB H
B 38 VT AR A B MG 2 AT B Ak
B0 BOAGE T ¥ BT IR Z AR Y
ks I -

RS 24 B Al (B 3 S IS

R B 2 R T > A I O S A
ARt 2 A o 4 B g B 7. 6 S A% Al
AL i 455 4 5 il A (ERR PP S &R > DA
BMEHZ A -
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AT RRMEE

9

Intangible Assets BREE
Group
rEE
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
BE HtEREE PR ]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2012 RZZE——FMB—H
Cost 5% 119,086 198,376 317,462
Accumulated amortisation 2REEMHERRESE
and impairment losses (17,775) (127,035) (144,810)
Closing net book amount FAKREFE 101,311 71,341 172,652
Year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=A=+—H
IFFEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 101,311 71,341 172,652
Amortisation expense BEER - (9,742) (9,742)
Impairment losses REEE (48,232) - (48,232)
Exchange differences ERESE (1,946) (1,153) (3,099)
Closing net book amount FARREFE 51,133 60,446 111,579
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=F=+—H
Cost 5% 116,795 195,872 312,667
Accumulated amortisation 2REEHERRESE
and impairment losses (65,662) (135,426) (201,088)
Closing net book amount FAKREFE 51,133 60,446 111,579
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-Z-HmNFE=A=+—H
IFFEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 51,133 60,446 111,579
Amortisation expense BEER - (8,730) (8,730)
Impairment losses REEE (45,979) - (45,979)
Exchange differences EREZE (4,050) (4,403) (8,453)
Closing net book amount FAREFE 1,104 47,313 48,417
At 31 March 2014 A—E—NFE=A=+—H
Cost 5% 107,428 185,616 293,044
Accumulated amortisation 2REEMHERRESE
and impairment losses (106,324) (138,303) (244,627)
Closing net book amount FAKREFE 1,104 47,313 48,417
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(a)

(c)

B A5 R M 5
Intangible Assets (Continued) 9 EREE(E)
Amortisation expense of HK$8,730,000 (2013: (a)  8730,000% G ( =% — =4 : 9,742,000
HK$9,742,000) has been charged to administrative W) 2 EH O AITEEM - W
expenses, while impairment loss has been charged to TR R Cat A 3 s (B 25) -
other gains, net (Note 25).
Other intangible assets mainly represent trademarks, (b) — FCAWMEE & 2 - 2 A FH R - HAHE K
franchise rights and favourable lease agreements arising T B 2 ] 5 R R L 5 40
from acquisition of subsidiaries with useful lives of 2 to HAE R 2 F204F ©
20 years.
Impairment tests for goodwill (c) FEBBERE
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating T T i TR 4 T 4% B K (AR R B
units (CGUs) identified according to country of S A BRI ) 43T o
operation.
A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is B LY 2 TR R R T
presented below.
2014 2013
—E-NmF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
North America b3 - 50,029
Hong Kong and Mainland China (Note a) BEARPEAM (HFa) 1,104 3,906
1,104 53,935

Notea:  Goodwill relating to an associate in Mainland China of
HK$2,802,000 was included in investments in associates
as at 31 March 2013 (Note 11). No such goodwill was
recorded as the associate was disposed during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Micka : B A BP9 b I 4 ) R T R
2,802,000 TR _F— =42
= HEARB S A FHRE (5
11) o R CHERREE AR > &
WRE_ZF—E=H=1—HIE
A B T AR SR A AH R T o
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Intangible Assets (Continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined
based on the higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell
and (ii) value in use determined using the discounted
cash flow method. The calculations of the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong and Mainland
China were determined with reference to their fair value
less costs to sell. The calculations of the recoverable
amounts of the North America CGU was derived from
an estimate of the enterprise value of the CGU by (i)
making reference to the market earnings and revenue
multiples of comparable companies; and (ii) discounted
cash flow method using the cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. The recoverable amount of the CGU
is derived from the weighted average values determined
by the market and cashflow approaches.

The key assumptions used for fair value less costs to
sell calculations for the CGUs in North America are as
follows:

— Enterprise value (“EV”)/  Based on market multiples of

Earnings before interest, comparable companies
tax, depreciation, and
amortisation (“EBITDA”)

multiple

adjusted by differences in
expected growth rate and
risk level of the CGU

— EV/Revenue multiple Based on market multiples of
comparable companies
adjusted by differences in
expected growth rate, risk
level and profitability of

the CGU

— Budgeted revenue
growth rate
(five-year period)

— Corporate store revenue  Average growth rate of -23%

per annum

— Franchise store revenue ~ Average growth rate of 8%

per annum
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9

BATSERAR AL

Intangible Assets (Continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

— Revenue growth rate 1%
(beyond five years)
— Discount rate 15%

Management determined budgeted revenue growth
rate based on past performance and its expectation
for the market development. The growth rates used to
extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period do
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
businesses in which the CGUs operate.

Based on the result of the work as mentioned above,
management have reduced the carrying amount of the
North America CGU by an amount of HK$45,979,000
through recognition of an impairment loss against
goodwill. Such impairment charge arose as a result of
the less than satisfactory past and expected performance
of the North America CGU. No other class of assets
other than goodwill was impaired.

Management has performed sensitivity analysis for

North America operation by adjusting the revenue

growth rate as follows:

(i) Over a five year period 1% more than or less than
based estimate

(i) Beyond five years 1% more than or less than
based estimate

Based on the aforementioned sensitivity analysis, should
revenue growth be increased or reduced by 1% over the
base case, the recoverable amount of the North America
CGU would be HK$17,532,000 higher or lower than the
current estimate amount, respectively.

BLEE (H)

R E R ()

— s R
(FLAEBIASP)

1%

- el 15%

B G HR A R B X FE T G E REET
E THA AR o F DL 17 7 5 =
PAAIN G B 4 8 Bl 1 38 R o > 6 AS 18
BRéeEEHASENEN EHEER -

IR B &R > 45 B Y WAL 38
A B4 A B A MR T A 45,979,000 ¥
T b e R A TR VB R 4R o W% A S
R R AL SE U 2 B 4 e A WAL A
TR BUR W BAR o BRAGESL » H M4
il B 7 WA DAL R 1 o

B LA SN A A A A A AU
GIAT - WG MR R R R

i) FAEH A e Al B 2 B
1%

(i) FAEBIDSL ARG S D
1%

MR8 B U B A A5 R - AL Z
Wi i 1 R T R R I 0 R A 1% -
FC B 4 A A WA 2w WA [T 5 71 B i B
IR T T 40 7 43 ) o 7Y ARG 17,532,000
WIT °
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e SRR MR

10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company

10 RMBLARARE-ARRQF

Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-{mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FERRMEITE » BEAK 331,802 331,802
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUWFT B A B R IE 1,036,324 1,009,803
1,368,126 1,341,605

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are not repayable in the next twelve

months.

The Directors are of the opinion that the underlying
values of the subsidiaries were not less than their

carrying values as at 31 March 2014.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at

JFE W A 2 s S I SRR~ AN EEALE

eSS AR A AR

HWERE -

R W 4 W) BB A A A

R -NE=ZA=1

— H Z R o

TRESIR ZF-UE=ZA=+—HK

31 March 2014: FEM B AR ER -
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held!
Name of subsidiary ML, B AL B 21T shares held FriEp%4  Principal activities
MEBARERE T tth B EftRA TR ER Bk FEEK
Ah Yee Leng Tong Hong Kong HK$600,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Restaurants Limited BB 600,00058 T EB@ NE
M —ESHERAE
Amigo Mio Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
& 208xT EE RE
Ashlone Limited Hong Kong HK$1,320,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BE 1,320,000t Ei® RNE
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e SRR MR

10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company

(Continued)

10 RMBLAARE-ANF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEBARER T 48 ith B HEftRA TR ER B FEEK
Asia Pacific Catering Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Corporation Limited &8 2058 @ ME
REMBERAR
Bamburgh Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
B8 08T EBE e
Barson Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
FHERABRATR B8 10,0008 E& MERE
Bloomcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
WMEBRAF B8 500,000 Ei& e
Bravo le Café Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 285t EBE e
Brilliantwin Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
EEBERA B8 285t EBE e
Café de Coral Assets British Virgin Islands US$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBHETHE 1Zn EB REEZER
Café de Coral Central Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Food processing
Processing Limited BE 08T TR BYEE
Café de Coral (China) Limited  Hong Kong HK$40,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
REK% (HPE)BRAA BE 40,000,000t Ei&@ REEZER
Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS Denmark DKK125,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
e 125000 3% =p E@ REEZER
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e SRR MR

10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company

(Continued)

10 RMBLAARE-ANF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247,  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEBARER T 48 ith B HEftRA TR ER Aotk FEEK
Café de Coral Development British Virgin Islands US$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited! RBHERES 1Zx &\ REER
Café de Coral Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RREREBRD A BE 208 LB NE
Café de Coral Group Limited Hong Kong HK$148,923,550  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RREDEBRAT BE 148,923,550 Ei\@ NE
Café de Coral (Guangzhou) The People’s HK$21,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited Republic of 21,000,00087x - RE
AR (BEM) BRRBBERAE China
(“The PRC")
Rz ARAME
(MEl
Café de Coral (Macau) Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 70%  Catering
RRE (R BROF | 300,000t i\ e
Café de Espressamente illy Hong Kong HK$12,000,000  Ordinary 70%  Catering
(HK) Limited BE 12,000,0008 7t Ei@ e
China Inn Restaurants, Inc. The United States US$1,457,287  Common 100%  Operation of
of America 1,457,287 %%  &Ei restaurants
xH BEEE
City Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
ElREBR AR B5E 200,000 EB MERE
Dai Lo Foo (Holdings) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,804,176  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RER (EE)BRAA B5E 1,804,176 EiB RE
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RIS RRMEE

10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company 10 RHBARRE-AQT (&)
(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEBARER R ith B HEftRA TR ER Aotk FEEK
Dongguan Asia Pacific Catering The PRC HK$7,400,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited FRE 7,400,000 - RE
RERDHBRERALTE
Dongguan Continental The PRC RMB27,330,000 - 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited FE ARK#27,330,0000t - BYEE
REWERRBRAAE
Eldoon Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 10,0008t EB® NE
Exo Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 4,000,000t E&E NE
Fine Regent Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
EEREERRAR BB 1Bx &\ NE
Foshan Café de Coral The PRC HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited A E 6,000,000/t - RE
HILARRERBRBERD A
Foshan Fortunate Spaghetti The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
House Catering Company FE] 3,200,000 - ME
Limited
HILTREREENEER
BIRAAE
Global Force Limited Hong Kong HK$12,466,446  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BHEBRATF A 12,466,446t L@ RE
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AT RRMEE

10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company 10 RHBARRE-AQT (&)
(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247,  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEBARER T 48 ith B HEftRA TR ER Aotk FEEK
Grand Seasons (Central) Food ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
and Beverages Caterers BB 10,0008t EB@ RE
Company Limited
Greatpower Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
REEEBRATA B8 1Bx &\ e
Guangzhou Asia Catering The PRC HK$2,000,000 - 100%  Catering consultancy
Management Limited A E 2,000,000t - BREH
BMNZEEREETRAA
Guangzhou Asia Pacific The PRC HK$16,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited AR ER 16,000,000t - NE
BMNZERRERAA
Guangzhou Café de Coral The PRC US$23,500,000 — 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited R E 23,500,000 - BYEE
BNARLEREEBRAF
Guangzhou Fortunate Spaghetti  The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
House Catering Company Ltd & 3,200,000 - e
BMNEEENEERERAA
Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering  The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited A E 3,200,000 - RE
BMNZERRERAA
Honour Congee & Noodles Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Food Limited BB 28T EBE RE

HREARMRAERDH
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e SRR MR

10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company

(Continued)

10 RMBLAARE-ANF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEBARER T 48 ith B HEftRA TR ER B FEEK
Interface Consultants Limited  British Virgin Islands US$1  Ordinary 100%  Provision of royalty
RBHERES 1Zx &\ services
RS RER
Invol Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$6,125,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BEREZERERAT (incorporation)/  6,125,00058 7T &i&® MERE
The PRC
(operation)
&8 (GEm)
FRE (%)
Jetstar Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BERRERAR & 1Bx &\ NE
Jiangmen Café de Coral The PRC HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited AR ER 5,000,000 7T - NE
IPRRERBBRAF
Kater International Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
B B PR B PR A 7] BE 28T EBRE NE
Kamstar International Limited  Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
S ERERABRLE A 1Brx LB NE
Kolink Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of premises
B EERAT &8 2783 B space
HEMFENE
Luckyview Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
HRLGERRATR B8 1T EB REEZER
Manchu Wok (Canada) Inc. Canada €$5,740,000  Common 100%  Fast food chains
mEX 5,740,000 T & HEAMRE
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e SRR MR

10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company

(Continued)

10 RMBLAARE-ANF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247,  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEBARER R ith B HEftRA TR ER Aotk FEEK
Manchu Wok Enterprises Inc. Canada C$2,865,000 Class A2 100%  Investment holding
(incorporation)/  2,865,00007c  A%ERI? REER
The United States  €$3,000,000  Class B? 100%
of America 3,000,000 00t BEERI®
and Canada C$955  Class C* 100%
(operation) 955t C¥ERI*
mEx (M)~
EERMEKR
(&)
Manchu Wok Enterprises Il Inc.  Canada US$2,100,000  Class B? 100%  Investment holding
(incorporation)/  2,100,000%x B#EHI* REEZER
The United States €$100,000 Class C* 100%
of America 100,000t CHEARI*
and Canada
(operation)
mEX (M),
EZERMEXR
(&)
Manchu Wok (USA), Inc. The United States US$5,180,100  Common 100%  Fast food chains
of America 5180,100%c Ei@E EHARE
xH
Regal Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BHERRERATR BB 1Bx &\ 45
Scanfoods Limited Hong Kong HK$2,100,000  Ordinary 100%  Food trading
ITBERREmERAF B5E 2,100,000/t Ei@ BmE
Shanghai Arena Catering The PRC HK$25,000,000 — 100%  Catering
Management Limited A 25,000,000 - RE

EEBEERERERAF
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Investments in Subsidiaries — Company

(Continued)

10 RMBLAARE-ANF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEBARER R ith B HEftRA TR ER Aotk FEEK
Shenzhen Asia Catering The PRC HK$2,000,000 - 100%  Catering consultancy
Management Limited A E 2,000,000t - BEEEA
FYZEEREEBRAA
Shenzhen Café de Coral The PRC HK$12,000,000 — 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited ~ A ER 12,000,000/87x - e
FRYARERBRERAA
Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering  The PRC HK$32,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited A 32,000,000 - NE
IR ESRRBERA A
Shenzhen Spaghetti House The PRC HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited ~ & El 6,000,000/t - ME
FYFEEZHREER
BIRAH
Silver Weal Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RAEPEFRAT BB 1Bx &\ RE
Sparango Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 208 &\ RE
The Spaghetti House Hong Kong HK$10,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Restaurants Limited & 10,000,0008 Tt Ei@ REZER
EVEERLT
Uwin Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HEBRBERATR BE 1Brx LB RE
Very Nice Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$17,025,000  Class A 100%  Catering
HHZREERLE BE 17,025,00078t  A¥a5Al RE
HK$5,675,000  Class B 100%
5,675,000/t BEERI

ARREEBMBERAT - 2014 FH 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT RRMEE

HKBARERRBRDF
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10 Investments in Subsidiaries — Company 10 RHMEARRE-AXAT (H)
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/
establishment registered Percentage of
and operation capital  Class of shares held'
Name of subsidiary SR BT © 247,  shares held R4 Principal activities
MEAREHE T 48 ith B HEftRA TR ER B FEEK
Weli Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
E-BRAF A 1,000,000t Ei\B RE
Winfast Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
XEEBERAT (incorporation)/ 10,0008 & MERE
PRC
(operation)
&8 (G
R ()
Worldson Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
ZEERERRATR BE 285t EBE e
Worldway Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
RIEBRAT | 300,000t i\ MERE
Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited Hong Kong HK$6,701,560  Class A® 100%  Catering
EEURERLT BE 6,701,560 &t  A¥ERI° B0E
HK$2,872,100  Class BS 100%
2,872,100t B¥ERI®
Zhongshan Café de Coral The PRC HK$1,300,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited ~ & El 1,300,000 - ME
FILARERRERAT
Zhuhai Café de Coral Catering  The PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited FE 8,000,000t - e
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Investments in Subsidiaries — Company
(Continued)

Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by
the Company. All other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of class A shares have no voting rights and
are entitled to receive a cumulative dividend of 8% of
the stated capital of Class A shares in preference to
dividends paid on Class B and Class C shares.

Holders of class B shares have no voting rights and are
entitled to receive a cumulative dividend of 6% of the
stated capital of Class B shares, subject to the rights of
the Class A shareholders, but in preference to Class C
shares.

Holders of class C shares have voting participating
shares and are subject to the prior rights of the Class A
and Class B shares.

Holders of class A shares have voting participating
shares.

Holders of class B shares have no voting rights.

The official names of the companies incorporated in
PRC, Macau and Denmark are in Chinese, Portuguese
and Danish respectively. English translation is for
reference only.

According to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap.622 which is effective from 3 March 2014, issued
capital represents share premium and share capital.

10 RMBLAARE-ANF (&)

Café de Coral Development Limited Hi
AR T HAERA o B A At bl g 2 7] 4
R HEARA

ABUN ey Z 54\ 3 408 45 553 B AEL A
e T f8 S 7 B ARURY K C BB M A 2 B 8,
Z ABUMN B it B A% 8 9% #A Rt e, o

2 B A KR B SR Z REARY - B2 B B4y
Z RN 45 S HE AR A R I S i
CHU B Z BRI 473 it a5 2K 6% 1Y
Bat g o

CHRUB A Z 5 NHEA F B2 0 2 i
A e 78 5% B A S B B33 ey =2
A o

AU By Z 75 N B M 45 SR 2 M
i e

BB ety Z F5 8 N\ S S 45 S R -
JRSLH B~ B R 2 B
8 43 B 8 R 3~ A SO KT
W o BOCR A M RF

MRIRAE —F— WA= H = HR AR
WA F R 6225 - TBATIRA
Ay i 8 S I o

Investments in Associates REtERATRE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=F
HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FET
Share of net assets EiLFEE 1,190 8,978
Goodwill S - 2,802
1,190 11,780
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e SRR MR

11 Investments in Associates (Continued)
(@) Details of investments in associates as at 31 March 2014
are as follows:

Place of

establishment/incorporation

and operations Principal
Name AL M activity
NCIECE e it B FEHEK

11 RBERRARE(

&)

(@ RFB-WE=ZA=+—HREEAF

BEZFEREWT -

Particulars Interest held
of issued indirectly
shares held EEEE
& 1338 5l R =E

Measurement method
STERE

Dai Bai Dang Restaurants ~ The United States of America ~ Catering
LLC (“DBD") xE U

(b) The Directors are of the opinion that the underlying
value of the associate was not less than the carrying
amount as at 31 March 2014.

(c)  During the year, the Group disposed of an associate with
carrying value of HK$7,437,000 (2013: HK$1,725,000)
and recognised gain on disposal of HK$7,053,000 (2013:
HK$4,051,000) (Note 25).

12 Investments in Joint Ventures

Common 20%
ZiE

Equity
=%

(b) EHERBLBE AT ZEBEE AR

“F-NE=ZA=1

—HZMRHHE -

(c)  NAAERE > AR & — MBS A
R T A A 7,437,000 5 ( R — =

A 11,725,000 ¥ T )

Fe e w8 th B e A

7,053,000 ¥ JG ( =& — =4F 1 4,051,000

W) (M 25) -

12 REEQNTKRE

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-pmEF —2-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets EiLFEE 19,772 28,072
Impairment loss WEEIE - (3,700)
19,772 24,372
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(b)

(©

13

p E e e
Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued) 12 REEXTKRE (F)
Details of the joint ventures as at 31 March 2014 are as  (a) RZF—WE=A=+—HEBA A
follows: BWTF :
Place of
establishment/incorporation Interest held
and operations indirectly
Name R W Principal activity EEEE Measurement method
NGRS R FEEK R = FFEGE
Profit Sky International  British Virgin Islands Bakery production and 50% Equity method
Limited EBHETHE operation of bakery shops ERE
BXREIFERATR SENEREEEEE

The Directors are of the opinion that the underlying (b)) #HHERHGEAEN T -NE=ZNH
value of the joint venture was not less than its book =+ HZ HBREEAR D Z H IR wE
value as at 31 March 2014. fi -

During the year, Xian Scanfoods Zhao Long Foods () WA » ARLEE A 4 6 v Lok

Company Limited, a joint venture of the Group, was HEEMARARCTUHER - HiL -
liquidated. As a result, the Group recorded loss on AL E B R A S AR E BT ER
disposal of investment in joint ventures amounting to 231,000 # 76 ( =% — =4F : 4) (B sk
HK$231,000 (2013: Nil) (Note 25). 25) o
Available-for-sale Financial Assets 13 AftHESREE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—-MmEF —E-=
HK$7000 HK$7000
Fax Fax
Beginning of the year FHEEeR 451,087 417,667
Additions =" 8 -
Disposals HE (17) (5,229)
Net gains transferred to equity (Note 23) AR 2 F W (B 23) 71,438 38,649
End of the year FRER 522,516 451,087
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RE R

13 Available-for-sale Financial Assets 13 AHHESHMEE (&)
(Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: A e A DL R I
Group
AW
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET
Listed investments L&
— Market value of listed securities - tHESETE 522,516 451,087
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in A At e A3 DAY T R R -
HK dollars.
The fair values of the listed investments are based on TR A AP AR AR AR B i 5 Y BLAT
their current bid prices in an active market. G
14 Non-current Prepayments and Deposits 14 ERBBEAREBERZES
Non-current prepayments and deposits mainly comprise it B FE A AR IE St R E AR
rental and utility deposits and prepayments for property, IKEMEIR B RS~ s B i Al LAY
plant and equipment. K e
Substantially all of the non-current prepayments and R A7 I i 38 Tk T R 4 4 2 WG
deposits are denominated in HK dollars. The existing BRI 32 5 3 05 38 25 3 48 7R R o
counterparties do not have significant defaults in the
past.
15 Inventories 15 #E&
Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable FEREROE Y RIEFEMN - R E
stores and are stated at lower of cost and net realisable ST BB A Z AR E AR
value.
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and TR 2 52 e Rt A BB AR 2 77 5
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$2,273,687,000 WA K 2,273,687,000 #IG (T — =4F ¢
(2013: HK$2,090,196,000). 2,090,196,000 #JT) ©
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16 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 16

(@)

(b)

and Deposits

EEREMBEWIRE BARER
J58:7%

Group

TEH
2014 2013
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$ 000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade receivables EEREWIRE 38,523 37,665
Less: provision for impairment of receivables W EERWFERERE - (129)
Trade receivables — net (Note a) S REWCRERTE (fata) 38,523 37,536
Other receivables (Note b) H bR BRIE (A72F ) 41,137 110,135
79,660 147,671
Prepayments and deposits ERARERRS 106,921 124,966
186,581 272,637

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash  (a)

basis. The Group also grants a credit period between

30 to 90 days to certain customers for the provision

of the Group’s institutional catering services, sales

of merchandise for the Group’s food manufacturing

business and its franchisees.

Other receivables comprised, among others, balance  (b)
due from a joint venture of HK$7,552,000 (2013:
HK$6,658,000). The balance due from a joint venture
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

AR S UBL &R 5 R L o AREH
iaT =+ B RKAE T T 0
AR B ~ e i SR 2 B AR A
T o

Fof E ORI P B WA B A
w] &5 827,552,000 G ( = F — =4
6,658,000 70 ) o HEWL & 8 4 v 3k H W
JEHCH ~ AFHA S S e B OR A IR o

ARRLYEBBERDR - 2014 F3H, 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
=

BA SRR MY At

16 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
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16 EXRHMEWIRIE FANFE

and Deposits (Continued) k& (&)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: BRBEBCREARE T
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—e-mE —g-=
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
0-30 days FEZ=1+H 27,346 23,321
31-60 days =+t—ZxT+H 8,094 7,484
61-90 days ~tTt—Zh+H 1,856 2,801
Over 90 days b icly el =| 1,227 4,059
38,523 37,665
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade B S M WO TE A Yol (43 (R S B D T
receivables is as follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-IE —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FiET FET
Beginning of the year FEER 129 595
Provision for impairment BB E - 55
Receivables written off during the year FRFHENERRE (125) (484)
Exchange difference EHER (4) (37)
End of the year FEREER - 129

The creation and release of provision for impairment

receivables have been included in administrative

expenses in the income statement. Amounts charged to

the allowance account are generally written off when

there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision

for uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the

consolidated financial statements.

ok L85 7 458 T 1 82 S5 R G k1 998
MOE ARG RN ZATEEH o 12
SR P A o Y S e A TR S 9 W
] AP B4 R o E R ARG Y
AR O % R BE M ] 2 72 36 M WOHR T Y

TRAEAE TSy $88 i
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BATSERAR AL

Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are
not considered as impaired. As of 31 March 2014, trade
receivables of HK$1,227,000 (2013: HK$4,059,000) were
past due but not impaired. Substantially all of these
trade receivables were aged less than 120 days. These
relates to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The Group did not
hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables and
deposits that are neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties
do not have significant defaults in the past.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and
deposits approximate their fair values due to their short

term maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

16 EXRHMEBEWRIER FAARIR

Rz (&)

AR AR A LT H 8 SEREBUR IH
MR B8 4 5 JEUAS 67 2% i B AT Ak AP 98 445 D
e Ez2_F-NWFE=A=Z+—H &
FEREWRTE 1,227,000 800 (—F— =4 ¢
4,059,000 ¥ 7 ) £ 73 1 10 3 0 D4 o
KR O 8 S RE WOHR T Y R % A0 R 120
H > BR300 391 3 0 A D A7 A+ ik ik 8k 1)
WL A B o ARSE N R A A A K
5 AR IR BE ©

W A 76 391 7 8 Dl = 7 3 % Al HE WA
HEHEHFEREARNERELZS
7 WA AT A sk Bl AR TE AT A > B
A Y Z Ty 34 7 3 A I A R AT A K A T
B o

8 S LAt 1 A IR e 4 4 9 E
HIHH > SOLIR (A S A PR

7 5 [ Y A 3 e B At OB WAL R T 2 B v
DT B

Group

TEE
2014 2013
=F-mF —F-=F
HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FET
HK dollar BT 60,927 127,086
RMB AR 14,911 17,504
US dollar Ey 520 1,525
Canadian dollar mEXxT 3,302 1,556
79,660 147,671

ARRLYEBMARDT - 2014 F3;] 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
=

17

(@)

BTSRRI AL

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

17 BAFEIIANERRZEHMEE

Group
TEH
2014 2013
—z-—mE —g-—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current financial assets at fair value BAFEIIABREE
through profit or loss: ZERBERMEE :
Derivative financial instruments (Note a) TTESRIT A (ffata) 7,771 33,094
Current financial assets at fair value BAFEIABREK
through profit or loss: ZRBERMEE
Investment portfolio (Note b) REHRE (BatDb) - 49,893
Derivative financial instrument (Note a) TSR T A (Bata) 8,067 6,184
8,067 56,077
Total et 15,844 89,171
Market value of listed securities FHEEmE - 40,770

These derivative financial instruments include one (2013:
two) guaranteed deposit notes with maturity dates
of five years (2013: five years); one (2013: three) RMB
performance notes and nil (2013: one) USD performance
note with maturity date ranging from one to two
years. These notes are unsecured and bear interests at
variable interest rates during the terms of the notes.
The guaranteed deposit notes bear interest at 3-month
LIBOR with interest cap of 8.5% (2013: ranging from 7%
to 8.5%) and interest floor of 2.5% (2013: ranging from
2.5% to 3.5%).

In 2014 and 2013, the RMB performance notes are
unsecured and bear variable return according to the

RMB performance during the period with a floor return
of 0% (2013: 0%) per annum.

In 2013, the USD performance notes were unsecured
and bear variable return according to the RMB
performance during the period with a floor return of 0%
per annum. Such USD performance notes were fully
disposed during the year.
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18

B S ER AR Y
Financial assets at fair value through profit 17 RAFEIIABZRZEMEE
or loss (Continued) (%)
During the year, the Group disposed of the investment  (b)  FAAAEJE » ASR I O h 5 % # fn AlL
products portfolio and recognised gain on disposal £ SIf e 2 B R 1,446,000 T - SIES
of HK$1,446,000, which was included in other gains A [ H b s | (FFE 20) o
(Note 20).
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are BATFAEP AR 283 2 0 il A S 9%
denominated in the following currencies: DUT B -
Group
AW
2014 2013
—2-F —B-=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TETT
US dollar EH 15,844 73,118
RMB ARE - 16,053
15,844 89,171
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value A PRSP AR 25 38 2 5 1l 7 i A F
through profit or loss are recorded in other gains, net, in i FA 5 BB it A\ Ao 2 AR A S At 3 e 2R
the consolidated income statement (Note 25). W (B3 25) ©
The fair values of the above investments are based on DA b B B4 2 1R AR B 70 1B i 55 HY
current bid prices in an active market. BUTH R -
Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three 18 BB=@AZHBENERITERAR

Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank deposits with maturity over three months

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had bank deposits with
maturity over three months and less than one year of
approximately HK$31,010,000 (2013: HK$31,076,000).
The deposits were denominated in USD and bore
average interest rate 0.35% (2013: 0.45%) per annum.

REERREEEEE
BB=EA RN ENRTENR

MR- WEZA=Z+—H » REEE
SRATAF AR A TR 38 =AW H R AR — 42 3]
B H #131,010,000# 70 ( ZF — =4 ¢
31,076,000 ¥7T) © fFaK PAR T A it &
W o SEAERIR 2 0.35% (ZF—=4F ¢
0.45%) °
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18 Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three 18 BB =EAZNHBHNRTERK

Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents URBREeRBELEEER (&)
(Continued)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) BHEeRREZEEH
Group Company
REE ZNNS
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF —F-= —E-mEF —B-=fF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHEEAES 370,107 400,143 563 193
Short-term bank deposits SEHISRITER 633,986 372,551 - -
1,004,093 772,694 563 193
Maximum exposure to credit risk {5 & B b & R RIESEE 991,879 753,817 563 193
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits R SRAT R 2 B BRAE A R 5 2.6% (=
was 2.6% (2013: 2.9%) per annum. These deposits have T2 29%) 0 BEFKZ P E
an average maturity of 75 days (2013: 80 days). WHZ7H (2R =4 :80H) o
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the Bla RBEFMHEE BB TER :
following currencies:
Group Company
REE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F =F-mF —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT TBT FBT
HK dollar BT 421,365 270,862 563 193
RMB ARE 501,562 424,432 - -
US dollar EH 67,334 61,917 - -
Canadian dollar mEXRT 5991 6,619 - -
Others Hith 7,841 8,864 - -
1,004,093 772,694 563 193
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(b)

19

B S ER AR Y

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances
of HK$254,964,000 (2013: HK$202,131,000) were
denominated in RMB and were deposited with banks
in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies and remittance of these
deposits out of the PRC are subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments

18

19

BEBRE=EANMBAMNRTERN
URBREkRBREEEHER (&)

RERRSEEER (HF)

AL DL N RO SHE W T B A KB
& (ETE H 254,964,000 6 (—ZF—=
4F 1 202,131,000 ¥ JG ) 17 B H B N H
SRAT o % VAN RO R A i S0 A%
2 A B REE H e (B P b 2 S B R
AEL A ¥ 471 REE 57 1) 0 2 B kA o

RHRESBANRERRBBRBSHE
]

Group

TEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Retirement benefit liabilities BReEHANEE

Defined contribution schemes (Note a) REMKETE (Kt a) (10,290) (9,966)
Defined benefit scheme (Note b) RERFGE (HFb) (7,483) (25,670)
Provision for long service payments (Note c) REABRTE S48 (B c) (22,850) (19,680)

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is
administered by an independent trustee.

(a)

REMHKETE

AR B A 5 o e 4 A A R 41
T 7 O O A1) ) 2 D, TR 2 D 2 A v
1 B S A3t v ] 1k A Bt ) (sl A it
B ) o WA St B oL Re R
B o
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(a)

BTSRRI AL

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)
Defined contribution schemes (Continued)

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and
the eligible employees makes monthly mandatory

contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’

relevant income as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum
of HK$1,250 per month. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the Mainland China, Canada and
the United States of America. The Group is required to
make contributions to the schemes at various applicable
rates of monthly salary that are in accordance with the
local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has defined
contribution scheme payable of HK$10,290,000 (2013:
HK$9,966,000), which was recorded in other creditors
and accrued liabilities.

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for
its employees in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement
under the scheme is calculated based on the final salary
of the staff and the length of service with the Group. The
scheme assets are held independently of the Group’s
assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the
Group and the employees in accordance with qualified
independent actuary’s recommendation from time to

time on the basis of periodic valuations.
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(a)

# (&)

REMHKETE (&)

MR Bt 8 > AR LIS E kR
B 4 ZEURLAR 5 ) e 2 R ) AR 91 2 R
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P 2 B 4w BRI ) 2 5% s v A 4t
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1,250 #7T © W%t # Z B 52 Mt B ik
B30 ) 2 R A2 A

A AR 8 2 v R P M~ R R 3R R A
B PR sk st ) o SR I ZH 1
B R AUE - 8 A HH i [F]8 H B
Rkt K -

N oR-PIEZA=Z4—H > REEF
B 58 A KT 1 A 3K E 10,290,000 ¥ T
(=B — =4 19,966,000 #70) » S5
At R A MR T T B T o
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19 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision

(b)

B S ER AR Y

for Long Service Payments (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b)

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified
actuary, using the projected unit credit method.

The net liabilities recognised in the consolidated

s (&)
SERANE (&)

19 RAREBANEBRRPBRE SR

L 26 S A R 3 B P S AR
SRR S (A3 ) A PR 2 W] B FEG B A

i B AT -

TE A5 B BB IR DU WS 2 BRI T

statement of financial position are determined as H) 75 N
follows:
Group
TEH
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —F-=
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Present value of funded obligations AEEECZHE (153,199) (171,881)
Fair value of plan assets FREEZAYE 145,716 146,211
Net liabilities in the consolidated FERBERREAZFERE
statement of financial position (7,483) (25,670)
Remeasurement on defined benefit EFFE2RTEF
— obligation excluding interest expense - EE(RERZERM) 15,267 (17,244)
Remeasurement return on plan assets EWFrEFEEEZER 4478 5,594
AREEFBRLTE - 2014 F£5; 167
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19 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision 19 ZBhEBANEERRERBESE

for Long Service Payments (Continued) & (&)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b)y HRERFAGE (E)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as FOERMEMEB T
follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$7000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&&E5))
Beginning of the year FAEER (171,881) (157,612)
Current service cost BB R R AR (4,866) (5,280)
Interest cost F B A (1,534) (1,522)
Employee contributions EEMHR (1,178) (1,229)
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme BRI ERERAGE 15,267 (17,244)
Benefits paid 2ER 10,993 11,006
End of the year FEREER (153,199) (171,881)
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19 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision 19

(b)

RAREENEBRRUBRE SR

for Long Service Payments (Continued) & (48)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b)y HRERFAGE (E)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as wt# B A A BT
follows:
Group
rEHE
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —g2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(2E7))
Beginning of the year FOER 146,211 145,284
Interest income FE WA 1,338 1,424
Employee contributions EEMHR 1,178 1,229
Employer contributions BEMHR 3,533 3,686
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets ~ FEFEIEEX N ZTHEH (29) -
Remeasurement on return on plan assets EHFFTETEEE 2B R 4478 5,594
Benefits paid [EECEEE (10,993) (11,006)
End of the year FEREER 145,716 146,211
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income A A HE RN R Z ST
statement are as follows:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FE
(Restated)
(RE7))
Current service cost A R 4,866 5,280
Interest cost FIE LA 1,534 1,522
Interest income on plan assets FEIEEZFEWA (1,338) (1,424)
Administrative expenses THEA 29 -
Total, included in employee benefit expenses #zE > CEEEEERANEBRAR
(Note 32) (KfaF32) 5,091 5,378
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision

19 RAREBANEBRRPBRE SR

for Long Service Payments (Continued) & (&)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (by REBFGE (&)
Of the total amount debited to the consolidated ERP A A HE RN EHE DO AR
income statement, approximately HK$2,350,000 (2013: B A B AT B # 43 i % 2,350,000 #
2,409,000) and HK$2,741,000 (2013: HK$2,969,000) Jo( =& — = 4 :2,409,000% o6 ) X
have been included in cost of sales and administrative 2,741,000 76 ( = F — =4 : 2,969,000
expenses, respectively. #IT)
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: PR 2 2R ARSI T
2014 2013

—E-0F —EB-=F
Discount rate BEIR &= F52.25% p.a. F50.9% p.a.
Expected rate of future salary increases RIRF 2 B R =R BF45% p.a. FEL5% p.a.

The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income was a gain of HK$19,745,000
(2013: loss of HK$11,650,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income was a loss of HK$24,751,000
(2013: loss of HK$44,496,000).

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of
total plan assets are as follows:

AE S A 2 i WAC N 3 3 T R ) L S 1R R
&2 st B A %A 19,745,000 G (—
F—Z4F ¢ EE 11,650,000 #0)

AE £7 A 2 T A SR e R A E R R
&2 B 5 E s B 8 1 24,751,000 #
TG (= F— =4 ¢ 518 44,496,000 #7T)

E B AN AR B A b
LU

2014 2013

—E-NEF —E-=F

Equity instruments EETH 34.6% 38.0%
Debt instruments BEIR 59.2% 60.0%
Other assets HEE 6.2% 2.0%
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19 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision 19 ZBhEBANEERRERBESE

(b)

for Long Service Payments (Continued)

# (&)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) RERBHEE(E)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (“DBO”)

to changes in the assumption is:

HRAERANEENTE

Impact on DBO

SR AR ) ST S A ) A R A

Changes in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

B2 REZIE N B

Discount rate ALIE 2R 0.5% Decreased Increased
by 3.1% by 3.3%

WA 3.1% #hn3.3%

Salary increase rate FEER= 0.5% Increased Decreased
by 3.2% by 3.1%

#hn3.2% WA 3.1%

Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme
by the Group for the year ending 31 March 2015 are

approximately HK$3,301,000.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit

obligation is 7 years.

3,301,000 T °

HRBE—F-AE=H=1+—HIL&E
BE > B 5R E AR A F1E A TE AL R A 2

T R B AT R S 3 AR A 7 4 o
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19 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision

(b)

(c)

19 RAREEINEBERRIBRESH

for Long Service Payments (Continued) & (48)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (by REBFGE (&)
Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation REF-WEZA =+ HEREERN
on 31 March 2014: EAE M FEI R H 7 -
Less than Between Between Next
ayear 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
—F R —EWE —ERE FFEBS
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Defined benefit obligation AERAMEML 7,369 21,329 40,807 53,700

Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group
is exposed to a number of risks. The defined benefit
scheme offers a defined benefit depending on members’
length of service and their salary at the time of leaving
the firm. Active members contribute 2.5% of their salary
to the scheme, while the Company bears the remainder
cost of funding the scheme. The scheme exposes the
Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk,
salary risk, and investment risk.

Provision for long service payments

The Group provides long service payments for its
employees in respect of long service payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was
valued by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent
qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit method.
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19 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision 19 RASEIEBERRMBRHEH
for Long Service Payments (Continued) & (&)
Provision for long service payments (Continued) (c) RERKEEE (&)
The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of TERR AT B IR DL A R 2 BTN T
financial position is determined as follows:
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-—mE —z-=&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Liability in the consolidated statement of HEMBRRERAZER
financial position 22,850 19,680
Remeasurement on plan liabilities FEIBEZEHE 3,893 10,982

Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated

TE AR A BB IR DL e 2 LS B

statement of financial position are as follows: T
Group
TEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FOER 19,680 9,872
Current service cost RA R A 2,695 255
Interest cost PSS %N 139 37
Remeasurement of provision RUBRBEEBREZENTE
of long service payments 3,893 10,982
Benefits paid 2B (3,557) (1,466)
End of the year FEREER 22,850 19,680
AREEFBRLTE - 2014 £/ 173
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(c)
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)
Provision for long service payments (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement are as follows:

RARESEINEBERRIBRHE SR
# (&)
RRB SBE (&)

TERR R MR Z BT

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$7000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current service cost BARBERA 2,695 255
Interest cost FE KA 139 37
Total, included in employee benefit expenses #EE > EEREEREERAMAIA
(Note 32) (H1aE32) 2,834 292

Of the total charge, approximately HK$86,000 (2013:
HK$183,000) and HK$2,748,000 (2013: HK$109,000)
have been included in cost of sales and administrative
expenses, respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

A3 O G 8 AR AT B R4
Bl 186,000 #6 7C ( & — =4F : 183,000
W0 ) F 2,748,000 00 ( Z T — =4 ¢
109,000 #JG) °

iRl EER ARSI T

2014 2013
—B-mE —g-=

Discount rate BL1E R

Expected rate of future salary increases

R 2 TR R R

FE26%p.a.
BFEL5% p.a.

HE04% p.a.
FEL5% p.a.

The remeasurement of provision of long service
payments recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income was a loss of HK$3,893,000
(2013: loss of HK$10,982,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long
service payments recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income was HK$17,503,000
(2013: HK$13,610,000).
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(c)

BATSERAR AL

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Provision
for Long Service Payments (Continued)
Provision for long service payments (Continued)

Expected contributions to the long service payment
obligation by the Group for the year ending 31 March
2015 after the offset the accrued MPF account balance is
approximately HK$1,550,000.

The weighted average duration of the long service
payment obligation is 6.6 years.

Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation

19 RAREEINEBERRIBRESH

(c)

s (&)
REBRB R E (&)

R HEE RE ST SRR A MR P A AR AR - AR
WEREZZE-HEZH=+—HIL4EE
RS T XA Z RIS & B A
#51,550,000 #TT

R & HLZ P48 % 6.0
45'3 o

RoF—WEZA =+ —HZRERA

on 31 March 2014: BEZ MBI H 547 -
Less than Between Between Next
ayear 1-2 years 2-5 years 95 years
—FR —ZEZWF MELE FEFEH A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Long Service Payment obligation RHEIRBEE(E 1,550 2,745 7,156 8,087

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long
service payment obligation exceeds the employer balance
in the Hong Kong mandatory defined contribution
plan. It exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as
interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment risk of
the Company’s MPF scheme’s constituent funds.

957 v O AR 1) > v R 000 R 25 < AT
20 7 8 ) e R R 3t B 2 O A
ik o R AR RIS & HAE - AAFIH
PRI b 7 32 ) i ~ 38 < L i B A A ]
SRR < T ) o A 4 B ML e A B

B
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AT RRMEE

20 Deferred Income Tax 20 EEBIR
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset B T R AT R T A B
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 7 SR Y B AR LR OB
current tax assets against tax liabilities and when the TE P Be [l — VA OB B > JU) 208 S A
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. e SRR B AT ELRTHGE o AR B AR VLR
The following amounts, determined after appropriate P R ) RS SRRn T

offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of
financial position:

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E-mE —g-=
HK$ 7000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered R 12E B B WE MELERIEEE
after 12 months 26,562 24,320
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled R 12EREZENNELIEEE
after 12 months (30,458) (31,616)
(3,896) (7,296)
Movements in net deferred income tax liabilities are as FREBEAMBZEBHWT ¢
follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Beginning of the year FAEeR 7,296 15,133
Deferred taxation credited to the consolidated EHREBEERNBRZIELERE
income statement (Note 28) (K1aE28) (3,510) (6,948)
Exchange differences [ EXE 110 (889)
End of the year FRERR 3,896 7,296
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20 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 20 EERTE ()
The movements in deferred income tax assets and A AR ) 2 4 R SE A B SRR
liabilities of the Group (prior to offsetting of balances B (5[] — BB Hb [ 2 s Bk 41K 8 T ) 4
within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year T

are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets: BELEBHREE :
Group
FEHE
Decelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Provision and others Total
WEBETE Bi| BREREAM i
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —F-= —E-mE —F-= —E-mE —F-= —2-QmE —B-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year & ¥&56% 13,629 10,626 11,270 7,142 3,929 2,832 28,828 20,600
Credited/(charged) to fE&HREEBEER
the consolidated T (H0RR)
income statement 4,789 3,003 24,370 4,176 (3,929) 1,097 25,230 8,276
Exchange differences [EHZEZE - - 714 (48) - - 714 (48)
End of the year FREEER 18,418 13,629 36,354 11,270 - 3,929 54,772 28,828
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20 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R

20 IRIERIIE ()

Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEBBEME
Accelerated
tax depreciation Intangible assets Total
MEHBTE B EE HE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-OFE  ZE-= —2-F —2—= —E-0F —B-=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET T FiET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year ~ F 4588 17,624 12,350 18,500 23,383 36,124 35,733
Charged/(credited) to ~ EHAEHRER
the consolidated R (5t A)
income statement 24,853 5,274 (3,133) (3,946) 21,720 1,328
Exchange differences EHERE - - 824 (937) 824 (937)
End of the year FRERR 42,477 17,624 16,191 18,500 58,668 36,124

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carrying forwards to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefits through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 March 2014, the Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets in
respect of losses of approximately HK$435,210,000
(2013: HK$311,692,000). Tax losses amounting to
approximately HK$231,030,000 (2013: HK$220,701,000)
and HK$97,749,000 (2013: HK$52,815,000) will be
expired up to year 2034 and 2018 respectively, while the
remaining balance can be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised for withholding tax that would be payable
on the distributable retained profits amounting to
HK$225,658,000 (2013: HK$197,438,000) of the
Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China earned
after 1 January, 2008. Such amounts are not currently
intended to be distributed to the group companies
outside of the Mainland China.
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JG ) % 97,749,000 L ( =& — =
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e SRR MR

21 Trade Payables 21 EEEMIRE
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: BREEMREARE T

Group

M
2014 2013

—E-mEF —F-=

HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
0-30 days ZEE=1H 193,884 172,078
31-60 days =t—ZxtH 8,590 3,079
61-90 days ART—ZEATH 1,125 1,163
Over 90 days BBATH 5,245 2,183
208,844 179,103

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated

in the following currencies:

B HRIH A IR i S L R R -

Group

REHE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$000
FBT FET
HK dollar BT 154,445 137,541
RMB AR 51,211 36,118
Canadian dollar mEXxT 3,188 5,444
208,844 179,103
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate FhT P 982 K 00 PR R > 8% S8 M A MR T F SR

their fair values due to their short term maturities.

T B A0 5 T L AP
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e SRR MR

22 Share Capital 22 R
Group and Company
REBRAAQT
2014 2013
—E—-F =F-=
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
share value share value
BAEE H{E BREE H{E
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Fhg FET Fhg FET
Authorised: SEERA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each LEREREE
0.10/8 7t
Beginning and end of the year F B FEREERR 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRARKEAR
Beginning of the year FEEH 574,067 57,407 569,557 56,956
Shares issued under share RIBASRER IR EIE 1T
option scheme (Note 34) B2 (H1aE 34) 3,232 323 4,510 451
End of the year FRERR 577,299 57,730 574,067 57,407

During the year, 3,231,500 shares (2013: 4,510,000
shares) of HK$0.10 each were issued pursuant to the
share option schemes of the Company at average
exercise price of approximately HK$13.76 (2013:
HK$13.69). Total proceed less expenses amounting to
HK$43,506,000 (2013: HK$61,758,000) was used to

provide the Group with working capital.
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R R

Reserves 23 f#f&
The Group (a) ZF&EH
Share-
bhased
Capital  Exchange compen-  Statutory
redemption translation sation  reserves
Share reserve reserve Capital Investment reserve  JXEf#H Contributed Revaluation  Retained
premium EAEE EFE reserve reserve LAR 33 1t (notei) ~ surplus reserve  earnings Total
BRADHE iE #E  BEARE RERE OGS (Bat) BEERH GERE KRZER Fot o)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FBT FET FET FET FET FET FET FiET
Balance as at 1 April R-B—=F
2013 M A — A& 415,093 152,034 108,680 21,079 350,698 31,423 - 85,197 180 2,327,583 3,491,967
Proceeds from shares issued BITRD U 43,183 - - - - - - - - - 43,183
Changes in fair value for AHESRMERE
available-for-sale financial ZAFEEE
assets - - - - 71,438 - - - - - 71,438
Reserve released upon disposal ~ FEHERAtHE
of available-for-sale EREEMEH
financial assets Kot - - - - 3) - - - - - 3)
Remeasurement of retirement BAENEEZ
benefit obligation BifistE - - - - - - - - - 15,852 15,852
Employee share option scheme REBERRTE
—value of employee services - EERBEE - - - - - 2,140 - - - - 2,140
Release of share-based RITERRIGE
compensation reserve BB X AF
to share premium upon &
exercise of share options BARGRE 8,077 - - - - (8,077) - - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of RIS
share options wi - - - - - (52) - - - 52 -
Transfer to statutory reserves WAEERE - - - - - - 21,494 - - (21,494) -
Reserve released upon disposal EHERBE AR Z
of investment in an associate WA GHE - - (2,763) - - - - - - - (2,763)
Exchange differences arising EIREINHE AR -
from translation of foreign BEARREE
subsidiaries, associates NEZERERE
and a joint venture - - (13,015) - - - - - - - (13,015)
Profit attributable to equity ARBREFEA
holders of the Company FEAESEF - - - - - - - - - 581,196 581,196
Dividends 3= - - - - - - - - — (518,325 (518,325)
Balance as at 31 March R-Z—mEF
2014 =A=+—A#& 466,353 152,034 92,902 21,079 422,133 25,434 21,494 85,197 180 2,384,864 3,671,670
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23 Reserves (Continued)

(a)

@)

182

Financial Statements

23 f&fs ()

The Group (Continued) (a) ZA&EE &)
Share-
based
Capital  Exchange compen-
redemption translation sation
Share reserve reserve Capital Investment reserve Contributed Revaluation  Retained
premium EARFEE  HMERE reserve reserve BARH XA surplus reserve  earnings Total
REHE e f#E EXREE REARKE WHEREE REB% AEFEE  REER mE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance as at 1 April R-TB—ZF

2012 M A — A& 341,876 152,034 103,222 21,079 312,630 41,195 85,197 180 2,163,442 3,220,855
Proceeds from shares issued BITR U 61,307 - - - - - - - 61,307
Changes in fair value for AHHESREE

available-for-sale financial ZDFEEE

assets - - - - 38,649 - - - 38,649
Reserve released upon disposal B HETHHE

of available-for-sale SREEMEL

financial assets HfktE - - - - (581) - - - (581)
Remeasurement of retirement  BIKBRIEEZ

benefit obligation (restated) EHEE(EN) - - - - - - - - (22,632) (22,632)
Employee share option scheme (B S 45 &R RS

— value of employee services -EERKEE - - - - - 3,722 - - 3,722
Release of share-based RITHER RIS E

compensation reserve B AR XA

to share premium upon K& E

exercise of share options EARDRE 11,910 - - - - (11,910) - - - -
Transfer upon lapse of RRISEER

share options [¥:4 - - - - - (1,584) - 1,584 -
Exchange differences arising ~ EEHNHEAR -

from translation of foreign BERNTAREE

subsidiaries, associates ARIZEREE

and a joint venture - - 5,458 - - - - - - 5,458
Profit attributable to equity AATREFEA

holders of the Company FEAEEF (EF)

(restated) - - - - - - - - 539,963 539,963
Dividends Ba - - - - - - - (354,774)  (354,774)
Balance as at 31 March R=TB—=F

2013 =ZA=+—R#&4% 415,093 152,034 108,680 21,079 350,698 31,423 85,197 180 2,327,583 3,491,967
Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC () #4847 B ik A R B > b B A Rl H

companies are required to allocate 10% of the

companies’ net profit to the fund until such fund

reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capital. The

statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval by

the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated

losses or to increase registered capital of the companies,

provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of

25% of the companies’registered capital.
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23 Reserves (Continued) 23 f##E (8])
(b) The Company (b) ZAARF
Share-
bhased
Capital compen-  Contributed
redemption sation surplus
Share reserve reserve BB Retained
premium EXRER URGXS (note i) earnings Total
B 1E #E NS RE (KiaEi) 1R EE T FEk]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance as at 1 April 2012 R-ZE——F
M A — B&sk 341,876 152,034 41,195 94,467 444 879 1,074,451
Proceeds from shares issued ~ ZE4TRRDUNZE 61,307 - - - - 61,307
Employee share option scheme {E 245 MR
—value of employee services - {BERSEE - - 3,722 - - 3,722
Release of share-based HITHERRAISREH
compensation reserve to BB XSS HEE
share premium upon AR RE
exercise of share options 11,910 - (11,910) - - -
Transfer upon lapse of ARSI WER
share options - - (1,584) - 1,584 -
Profit attributable to equity AATREFEA
holders of the Company FE(EER] - - - - 499,951 499,951
Dividends ®RE - - - - (354,774) (354,774)
Balance as at 31 March R-ZE—=F
2013 =ZA=+—H#&H% 415,093 152,034 31,423 94,467 591,640 1,284,657
Balance as at 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=F
MA—B#&& 415,093 152,034 31,423 94,467 591,640 1,284,657
Proceeds from shares issued 2247 BR 9 U & 43,183 - - - - 43183
Employee share option scheme {2452
—value of employee services - {EERKERE - - 2,140 - - 2,140
Release of share-based HITHERR SR
compensation reserve to BTN S HEE
share premium upon EHARGDRE
exercise of share options 8,077 - (8,077) - - -
Transfer upon lapse of ARSI RER
share options - - (52) - 52 -
Profit attributable to equity RATREFEA
holders of the Company FEAER - - - - 500,000 500,000
Dividends ’RE - - - - (518,325) (518,325)
Balance as at 31 March AZE—ME
2014 =B=+—H&&% 466,353 152,034 25,434 94,467 573,367 1,311,655
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24

BT N
Reserves (Continued) 23 f#fE (&)
The Company (Continued) (b)y ZA&ATF (&)
Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group () P&k £ B R AR LA M AL
reorganisation made in prior year and represented A > 2B IIAR RN T DURA B
the difference between the value of investment in a 7 S\ g 4 ) Bt ) T BLAC 24 )
subsidiary acquired by the Company and the nominal P B4 0 JBe A7 i L A 2 P B o ARBR
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange AT BB TR
thereon. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, MG () 43 T A% J 00 B8 4 3 0 A 76 B (i)
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, S W Y 53 B AR 1 B OB T U
subject to the condition that the Company cannot R DA T L B AT IR AC I I ¥ R MR 2 AL
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of W AR F AR T A A AR AR R
contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment IR M BB
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.
Revenue 24 Wz
2014 2013
—E-IF —E2-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of food and beverages HERYRER 6,859,106 6,265,645
Rental income HEWA 36,450 32,900
Royalty income SRR 33,738 36,699
Management and service fee income EEREHEERA 8,440 7,457
Franchise income HREWA 2,569 3,772
Sundry income HIEUA 50,160 47,616
6,990,463 6,394,089
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25 Other Gains, Net 25 HibFks
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—-=
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value gain on financial assets BATFEIABRRZSMEE
at fair value through profit or loss D FEWES 1,645 3,376
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERAFEIABERZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEWE 1,330 269
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEESREEKR
financial assets 3 920
Dividend income from listed investments FHrEREKRA 13,267 13,213
Fair value gains on investment properties REVENQAFEWER 54,600 58,800
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BRERRZET (BBR) W&
plant and equipment, net (9,805) 41,825
Impairment loss of a joint venture BENRZHERR - (3,700)
Impairment loss of property, plant M BERZEZBEEBER
and equipment (2,784) (9,203)
Impairment loss of goodwill BEZRESE (45,979) (48,232)
Gain on disposal of an associate (Note 11) HERE N TN (FEF 1) 7,053 4,051
Loss of disposal of a joint venture (Note 12) HESE AREBE (HF12) (231) -
19,099 61,319
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BA SRR MY At

Expenses by Nature

26 BMESIENER

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative 0455 75 8 15 AR B AT B A 2 43 A
expenses are analysed as follows: LU

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

(Restated)

(&%)

Cost of raw materials and consumables used AT LR FEM 955 A R AR 2,273,687 2,090,196

Amortisation of leasehold land FTRE L ih R & b {5 FARE < 88

and land use rights 3,017 3,014

Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHBE 8,730 9,742

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BMERREZITE 262,055 243,837

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises (including contingent
rentals of HK$52,220,000

HEYX 2 KEHERS
(BHERAE£ 52,220,000 T
(Z=F—=% :43,100,00087T))

(2013: HK$43,100,000)) 759,569 709,485
Exchange gains, net [ FEE (985) (4,191)
Employee benefit expense (Note 32) BERFBEX (M32) 1,862,229 1,693,371
Auditor's remuneration ZEENEN & 5,591 5,109
Electricity, water and gas B8 KkEBRERE 400,472 375,042
Advertising and promotion expenses TmERERELH 86,052 82,231
Provision for impairment of trade receivables EEEWERIENRERE - 55
Other expenses HiE A 669,632 607,008

6,330,049 5,814,899
Representing: (A

Cost of sales THER R 5,971,366 5,485,896
Administrative expenses THER 358,683 329,003
6,330,049 5,814,899

Finance Income 27 BIBUWA
2014 2013
—E—NF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income FE WA 12,989 10,966
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28 Income Tax Expense

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda
until 2016. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
for at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

income statement represents:

28 FiEBiEHA
ARARREREEROERE TN
A o o WE R A5 BE TG 4 HRAR 9 A T RE R
Bt e AR B F16.5% ( =&
16.5% ) $RHEE M o WGHMEF] Z Bk - Al
Fi AT 9 A 5T R B A AR 4 T 20 4
I 2 BT REARGH o

&R AR N EAZ BUE 15

2014 2013
—E—-ME —E-=
HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FiET
Current income tax: BNEAFHIE -

— Hong Kong profits tax - BBFEH 100,446 99,113
— Overseas taxation — BN IE 13,558 12,562

Deferred income tax relating to the origination R EREERERW R VIELRIE
and reversal of temporary differences (Note 20) (B1aE20) (3,510) (6,948)
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (3,817) (4,445)
106,677 100,282

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

S T A TR e B i ) < A T LA 4R
AW Z AR 5t 57 Bl Bl 2 3
W

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —F-=
HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FET
Profit before income tax BB AR R 688,757 641,245
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% EBBE16.5% (ZF—=%F : 16.5%)

(2013:16.5%) STEMNFIE 113,645 105,805
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries EMEZR B Rz & (2,757) 1,702
Income not subject to taxation BARF 2 WA (26,175) (26,182)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes TE IR E A 17,135 18,813
Recognition of previously unrecognised REFRFERAZERE=E

temporary difference (2,504) (5,223)
Tax losses not recognised RER2FIE 11,397 10,306
Over-provision in prior years BAFTERBBE (3,817) (4,445)
Others Hith (247) (494)
Taxation charge BIEXH 106,677 100,282
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29 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of HK$500,000,000 (2013:

29 ALRTREREABRMGEF

AR 2 i) B 25 it 3 o B A AR 2 ) R
N\ FEAG %A 2 500,000,000 T (—F
—Z4E 1 499,951,000 #TE) ©

HK$499,951,000).
30 Dividends 30 BE
2014 2013
—E—MmEF —E—=F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK17 cents SIRFHIRE | SRZER 17384
(2013: HK17 cents) per ordinary share (Z=2—=F : SRI17TEWL) 98,021 97,414
Special dividend, paid, of Nil EIREZFIRE ERTER . &
(2013: HK25 cents) per ordinary share (ZE—=%F : SR 2584) - 143,764
Final dividend, proposed, HK51 cents EEARERE  BREERKSLB
(2013: HK 48 cents) per ordinary share (ZZE—=F : R 48781/0) 295,168 276,026
393,189 517,204

A final dividend of HK51 cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014, was proposed.
Such final dividend is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the upcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect these dividends
payable.
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31 Earnings per Share

(a)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by

BRI F
RN

B e e A v A1) T3 3R A0 ) SRR R A\ E
A i B DAAE R CL B AT 5 38 By 2 T

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue Py Yz BB
during the year.
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=fF
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit attributable to equity holders of AATRERFE AEGEF
the Company (HK$'000) (F#&7T) 581,196 539,963
Weighted average number of ordinary DERITEBRR 2 MNEFTE
shares in issue ('000) (FEMN) 575,758 572,060
Basic earnings per share BREREF
(HK dollars per share) (EREY) HK$1.01 58 7T HK$0.94 38 7T
Diluted (b) #58

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive
potential ordinary shares are share options. For the
share options, a calculation is prepared to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

T e A T 3R N DR AT R 2
TR~ 329 Je B b AT B A 4 T A
W 0 B . e AR D 7 A B T BB
ZHEMETRET A o AR O ) A T
Fy R BERE o 508 Ji B JL M B R SR AR A
AR EE T A (RROR AR 2 W) 47 B2 3 T
G A5 o %A FE S IR AT
% S5 e B RE T BE AT r Z ER RE F B
WEAE o LR B B B B
A3 B A 8847 2 PB4 i AR RS

2014 2013
—ZT-lF ===

(Restated)
(&%)

Profit attributable to equity holders of AN TRESFE AEMLRET
the Company (HK$'000) (F#&x) 581,196 539,963

Weighted average number of ordinary ERTEBRZMEFIIH
shares in issue ('000) (FEMN) 575,758 572,060
Adjustment for share options ('000) LB AE 2 A (FEM) 3,116 3,796
578,874 575,856

Diluted earnings per share BRE#EEER

(HK dollars per share) (ERE®) HK$1.0058 ¢ HK$0.94 38 7T
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32 Employee Benefit Expenses 32 EERAMAX
(a) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as (a) FANEEBFFEZWOT :
follows:
2014 2013
—ZT-lmF —F-=
HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E%))
Wages, salaries and allowances IE - HekER 1,738,259 1,570,000
Discretionary bonuses FEETEAL 47,692 54,193
Pension costs BEEAREF
— Defined contribution plans - REMKEE 66,213 59,786
— Defined benefit plan (Note 19) - REBREE (HL19) 5,091 5,378
— Long service payments (Note 19) - REIRIES (B 19) 2,834 292
Share-based compensation expenses LU 2 & 2,140 3,722
1,862,229 1,693,371
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b)y E=E=#ME
The remuneration of each director for the year ended BEZE-NE=ZA=+—HILFERH
31 March 2014 is set out below: HERWESEIIWT -
Salaries, Employer’s Share-
allowances contribution bhased
and to pension compen-
benefits scheme sation
in kind Discretionary EEM expense
Fees ¥< - 2By bonuses EBARE AR AR Total
Name of director EEnE we REVWER FEERA FHEHR IA#He sz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny RN EE 50 2,164 11,264 162 — 13,640
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita EEB+ 50 1,017 2,120 15 — 3,202
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter EEALE 50 840 656 15 - 1,561
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael [RIA %4 960 - - - - 960
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan BEALE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel REL AL 180 - - - - 180
Independent non-executive — B HBITEE
directors
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael — £UEARLE 300 - - - - 300
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZFHEKE 300 - - - - 300
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry  SRHE 4 300 - - - - 300
Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert EBREALE 300 - - - - 300
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32 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(b)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31

EERAMAZ (&)
EEME (&)

BRECFR-=ZF=ZA=Z1T—HILEEN

March 2013 is set out below: BERMWERIIWT -
Salaries, Employer’s Share-
allowances contribution bhased
and to pension compen-
benefits scheme sation
in kind Discretionary EEM expense
Fees & - 28 bhonuses B AR 12 Total
Name of director EEgR e REYWEM FEERAL FEHR XOEe B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny EEBANSLE 50 2,091 11,229 157 - 13,527
Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita BETZLL 50 1,057 1,857 40 - 3,004
Mr. Lo Tak Shing, Peter EERLE 50 580 516 14 29 1,189
Non-executive directors HPITESE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael FR#&¢ 54 960 1,000 1,020 5 - 2,985
Mr. Lo Ming Shing, lan EEEREE 80 - - - - 80
Mr. Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FRELAE 80 - - - - 80
Mr. Lo Tang Seong, Victor EREELE
(retired on 11 September (R=Z—=F
2012) hA+—HEME) 36 - - - - 36
Independent non-executive — B HEITEE
directors
Mr. Choi Ngai Min, Michael EOEM LA 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey EEESKE 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry  SPHE 4 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Au Siu Cheung, Albert EEHALE 44 - - - - 44
Mr. Look Guy PS4 90 - - - - 90
(retired on 11 September (R=Z—=F
2012) hA+—HBEME)
No director waived any emolument during the year. GRRES: Y€ TV eI R TN E
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32 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 32 EERAMEX(E)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) HEBEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AR B2 4 ) P9 T4 B R N L 4
highest in the Group for the year include two (2013: H(ZF =4 ZH)EF > HMe
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in BN S EE3200) - =4 (2%
the analysis presented in Note 32(b). The emoluments AR ) B N R AR
payable to the remaining three (2013: two) individual ZMEmT
during the year are as follows:
2014 2013
—2-IF —B—=fF
HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET
Basic salaries, gratuities and other allowances  J&E¥r -+ LmBH & & H 28 6,551 4,421
Discretionary bonuses #IE? 1,342 1,216
Contributions to pension schemes PF%‘#‘QH#\#\ 106 78
7,999 5,715
The emoluments fell within the following bands: T Z AL R
Number of individuals
AB
2014 2013
—g-mF —g-=%
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7t %= 2,000,000 & 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % T = 3,000,000 5T 3 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 % T = 3,500,000 5T - -
(d) No incentive payment for joining the Group or (d) 4 P AR 3 55 5 70 44 Joc v 7 T A L 7
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to ST 2 o N AR 55 1) 2 358 i < sl vl ke
any director or the five highest paid individuals during it o
the year.
(e) Senior management’s emoluments by band (e) EHREEAETMEE
The senior management’s emoluments fell within the RARAERABRZHMRERENT
following bands:
Number of individuals
A
2014 2013
—ZT—NF —F-=
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T = 1,500,000 % T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %7t = 2,000,000 % T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001‘}%7755 2,500,000;& T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % T = 3,000,000 7T 2 2
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(a)

BATSERAR AL

Cash Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (a) KRBEAIGAHEEEEEZFRESY
cash generated from operations i
2014 2013
—E-NmF —E2-=F
HK$7000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before income tax BRELAT R 688,757 641,245
Adjustments for: R
— Finance income — B A (12,989) (10,966)
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - 4% - MERREITE 262,055 243,837
— Amortisation of leasehold land and - TS it &+ it 5F A RE R 8
land use rights 3,017 3,014
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B EE#H 8,730 9,742
— Fair value gain on investment properties -BEWE 2 ATFERS (54,600) (58,800)
— Fair value gains on financial assets at - BAFEIABRRZSRMEE
fair value through profit or loss B FERE (1,645) (3,376)
— Gains on disposal of financial assets -HERAFEIABRR
at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEERE (1,330) (269)
— Gains on disposal of available-for-sales ~-HEJHBESREE KRS
financial assets (3) (920)
— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, -HEWE  BEKRE
plant and equipment ZFEE (k) 9,805 (41,825)
— Gain on disposal of associates - HEHE ATzl (7,053) (4,051)
— Loss on disposal of joint venture ~-HESEQATZEE 231 -
— Share-based compensation expenses - UBRHEAENE 2,140 3,722
— Dividend income from listed investments - I HEREREWRA (13,267) (13,213)
— Impairment loss of a joint venture - BELNTIZRERSSE - 3,700
— Impairment loss of goodwill -HEZREEE 45,979 48,232
— Impairment loss of property, -W¥E BERREZREEE
plant and equipment 2,784 9,203
— Share of (profit)/loss of associates - FEfREE AT OFF) B8 (213) 4,243
— Share of loss of joint ventures -EEEEQATEE 3,958 5,987
Operating profit before working capital changes REBVE &2 FA 2 & ERF 936,356 839,505
Changes in working capital: REESEE
— Inventories -FE (7,211) (32,449)
— Prepayments and deposits -FEAREREZS 22,178 (45,999)
—Trade and other receivables - EEREMEWERTE (389) (5,382)
— Trade payables — BEETIRE 29,741 7,853
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities - HibE(SRERETER (28,349) 27,930
— Retirement benefit assets and provision for - EREEANEERRERESBE
long service payments 835 518
Net cash generated from operations EEEECFERS 953,161 791,976
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33 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 33
Cash Flows (Continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b)

REBREREBRME (H)

HRERETRERANHENE - K

34

proceeds from disposals of property, plant and ERBEMEBRERE
equipment comprise:
2014 2013
—ZT-lmF —F-=
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net book amounts (Note 7) BRENEE (A7) 13,049 33,504
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HENE  BRERSE
plant and equipment ZF (EE) s (9,805) 41,825
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE BMERRENSR
plant and equipment 3,244 75,329
Representing (A2
Cash received during the year TEEREARA 71,644 6,929
Cash received subsequent to 31 March ZA=+—H&ZBEHEA - 68,400
71,644 75,329

Share Options

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 24 September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”),
the Company may grant options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The Company granted options to certain
employees of the Group (including executive directors of
the Company) pursuant to the 2003 Scheme. The 2003
Scheme expired with effect from 24 September 2013.

A new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company upon the passing of a shareholders’ resolution
on 11 September 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”). Pursuant
to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to
the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. No share options had been granted
under the 2012 Scheme since its adoption.
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Share Options (Continued)

For options granted under the 2003 Scheme, the exercise
price in relation to each option was determined by the
Board of Directors of the Company, but in any event
would not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day or (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
or (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company. The
exercisable period and the vesting period of the options
were also determined by the Board of Directors and the
options shall expire at the end of a 5-year period after
the options become exercisable save that such period
shall not expire later than 10 years from the date on
which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted
in accordance with the 2003 scheme.

On 27 August 2013, a new share award scheme (the
“2013 Share Award Scheme”) was approved and
adopted by the Board of the Directors of the Company.
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2013 Share
Award Scheme will remain valid and effective for 15
years from the date of adoption.

No options were granted under the 2003 Scheme and
the 2012 Scheme during the year (2013: Nil). For the
options granted under 2003 Scheme in prior year, the
weighted average fair value of options granted was
determined using the Binomial option pricing model
of HK$4.51 per option. The significant inputs into the
model were weighted average share price of HK$22.15
at the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility
of 27%, dividend yield of 3.5%, an expected option life
of eight years, and an annual risk-free interest rate of
1.9%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three
years.

34

AR E A)

ARLBE 2003 7 #1452 Y Z AL ] S8 B A A - 3L
I AR A R HE R PAE - BT
VLR DA AT () #32 s Jhe s 4 B I (2|
538 Ty H ) A v e A A gk 32 B A H
AR 3% P Wi A s Gii) %2 ¢t H BT T
1228 5 1 AR 2 ] e A7 1 Mok 22 B i 4 A8
2 FT 2 1 ¥4 Wi B R (i) AR W A
T > Dhde & 2 o HLBE 2003 5t #19%
H 2 AT A 0 A R 2 A0 ) e i o 01 e
ERRPE - BRI AT Z B
A TUAR S0 T AE DA 4 452 HH R A
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PE-ZENA T EH s RAFE
=5 R L B BR AT B B 8 (12013
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M 4% 2003 51 B S 2012 51 # > A AR B i
TR R R (R — =4 ) o iR
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TIRE P~ ¥ 3 P 9 5 R ) — T 400 R
BER L A 4.51 W0 o A K Y i
ANAE 2 7 42 B R S 34 B 15 22.15
Wt > R C A AT RERT - PRIE27% -
JBe BB 3.5% > iR IR AE Z AR )\ 4F
A2 AR BRI R 1.9% o IRBRFEE S
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Share Options (Continued) RIS E (&)
The movements in share options are as follows: B B R Z S B DL E
Exercise Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Forfeited the year
A A TERH TEE FOHEER B®F e LS FRERR
HK$
B
1 November 2005 1 January 2007 to 31 October 2015 8.800 1,200,000 - (600,000) - 600,000
—EERF —EZtLF-A—HE
+—HA—H —E-HFtA=+—H
1 November 2005 1 January 2007 to 31 October 2015 8.750 644,000 - (288,000) - 356,000
—ZERF —EZtF-HF—HZE
+—HB—8H —E-HF+TA=+—H
1 November 2005 1 January 2008 to 31 October 2015 8.750 270,000 - (60,000) - 210,000
—ZERF —EENF-A—HZE
+—A—8H —E-RF+A=+-—H
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.268 3,095,000 - (882,500) - 2,212,500
—EELF —EEN\F=ZB=1HE
+A=H —E—t+F=A=+NH
2 October 2007 30 March 2008 to 29 March 2017 14.748 3,553,000 - (978,000) (18,000) 2,557,000
—EELHF —EZEN\FE=ZB=1+HZE
+A=8 —E2—+tH=AZ=+AhH
2 October 2007 30 March 2009 to 1 October 2017 14.748 772,000 - (170,000) - 602,000
—ERLF —EZNFE=ZRA=1+HZE
+HA=H —E—t+F+A—H
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 22.370 2,110,000 - (213,000) - 1,897,000
—E-TF —E2——%=A=+—-HZ%
+A=+N\H —E-EF=A=+H
28 October 2010 31 March 2012 to 27 October 2020  22.370 804,000 - (40,000) - 764,000
—E-—TE —E-——_F=A=+—-HZF
+A=+N\H —E-ZF+A=+tH
12,448,000 - (3,231,500) (18,000) 9,198,500

Out of the 9,198,500 outstanding options (2013:
12,448,000), 8,093,500 options (2013: 10,634,000) were
exercisable as at 31 March 2014. The related weighted
average share price at the time of exercise of the options
during the year was HK$24.83 (2013: HK$22.32) per

share.
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(a)

(b)

BATSERAR AL

Commitments
Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future aggregate

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

35

iR
REBEAE

REF-WUEZA=+—H - AEER
51 T B 2 A AL R R SR A 2

operating leases as follows: IR AL AR IR T
Group
TEH
2014 2013
—E—mEF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings T REF
— Not later than one year - —FRE@m 670,808 619,490
— Later than one year and not later than five years - SE— 2= E R ER W 1,033,439 977,709
— Later than five years -LFEZRE® 124,883 120,507
1,829,130 1,717,706

The above lease commitments only include
commitments for basic rentals, and do not include
commitments for additional rentals payable, if any,
when turnover of individual restaurants exceeds a pre-
determined level as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Company did not have any operating lease
commitment at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

A B AR R BRSNS - AR
175 PR 25 8 I 5 S P B0 T 0 T 75 A
R Z WO > B H ETA AT RETH e st
RSN -

RoF PSS AR RS
FEHZ R AR R
LR -

LTS

REF-WEZH=Z4—H o AEEZ
EARSEMT ¢

Group

TEH
2014 2013

—E-mE —E-=
HK$7000 HK$7000
FET FET
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment KENE  BMERSEE

Authorised and contracted for BHEREEY 22,222 10,205
Authorised but not contracted for EHUEEREY 392,371 446,501
414,593 456,706

The Company did not have any capital commitment at
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

REF-WESAS AR SRS
FEZAZ A R
AT o
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37

BTSRRI AL

Financial Guarantees

As at 31 March 2014, the Company has given guarantees
totalling approximately HK$536,000,000 (2013:
HK$536,000,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

The Group’s bankers have given guarantee in lieu of
deposits amounting to approximately HK$90,512,000
to the landlords and utility providers of the subsidiaries
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
approximately HK$83,591,000).

Future Operating Lease Arrangements

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

36

37

MBER

W oF—WEZA=Z+—H > KAH R
FoF 25 A SR BB AT R G Y I8 A ) =2 £
¥ 1R #1536,000,000 8 6 ( = F — =
536,000,000 # L) ©

NEEZZ—-NE=ZH=+—HIL4E
BE > AR 2 A 2R SRAT O 1) AR 4 4]t
A E] Z 3 K TR 4t HE v 1R L4
R > DIREF & 84945 90,512,000 # 0 (—
F—=4F 1 £983,591,000 #70) ZAFAK ©

ARREEHE 2R B
BB -WEZH=1—H - AREER
RS AT A R T AR A W 2
e (A B A AR T

Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than one year —FRER 33,257 22,273
Later than one year and not later than five years HE=ZFHFEREM 28,817 27,290
62,074 49,563

The Company did not have any future operating lease
receipts as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.
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(a)

(i)

(iii)

BATSERAR AL

Related Party Transactions
The Group has the following significant
transactions with related parties during the year:

38

BREALRS
FAXREEEBABRLIBUTNZEX

X5

2014 2013
—E-—MEF —E-=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operating lease rentals paid to a related party: EIEBAIZA2LLHERS
— Tinway Investments Limited (Note i) ~ RFEREBRRDT (KD 2,148 2,148
Franchise and development fees paid to O X 2EFEERR
a related party: BREA
—illycaffe SpA (Note ii) —illycaffe SpA (&#at i) 481 507
Logistics service income received from o) B B 5 W ER 2 MDA AR A U A
a related party:
— Worldinn Limited (Note iii) - EBERQT (M i) 332 670
Rental income received from a related party o ER B 5 B Z FE & U A
— Worldinn Limited (Note iii) ~EHHRQT (Katii) 950 -

Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned
by Ms. Lo Pik Ling, Anita, a Director of the Company,
an associate of Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, the
Chairman of the Company, and Ardley Enterprises
Limited, a company wholly and beneficially owned by
the family members of Mr. Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, a
director of the Company.

illycatfe SpA is a controlling shareholder of Café
de Espressamente illy (HK) Limited, a 70% owned
subsidiary of the Group.

Worldinn Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Profit
Sky International Limited, a 50% owned joint venture of
the Group.

The above transactions were carried out in accordance
with the terms of the contracts entered into by the
Group and the related parties.

@)

(i)

(iif)

RAELHEAMRA A HREEL L (KA
AEF) PR (RAFR L) Z
Tt 8 N T — [ 8 B Ol e A (AR 24 ) o
) KB B 2 EHBHA Z Ardley
Enterprises Limited ff 3k F #EA -

illycaffe SpAZs A< 58 [ B 47 70% i
i B J& 2 W] Café de Espressamente illy
(HK) Limited Z ¥ BB o

HEIAAMAT R BREEARAF 22
5 PR 23 ) o R B A R B R AR
FMFH 50% BREZ B A -

3 22 By 7 HEAS 5 V] B R Bk O B RT
RIFOEAT -
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38 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 38 FREALXRS (E)
(b) Key management compensation by FEEBEAEMS

2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances Ead0) S 10,684 10,618
Fees wue 150 1,110
Discretionary bonuses JEEETEAL 16,084 17,247
Contributions to pension schemes EBAREEEIHR 348 372
Share-based compensation expense LU A& - 29
27,266 29,376
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Principal Properties Held for Investment Purposes

FEREY=
Description Lot number Type Lease term
faut i BR 4R 5% BEE AL
Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on the 1 Floor, New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5086 Shop Medium-term
Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling Mall and Nos. 10-16 Lai Wan Road, rEE M ER 5086 5% 5k H
Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon
NEHBAEZHN
BREESL-IIHR
FEE10-16 95— NS FAK C B0
Shop F14 on the 1 Floor, Saddle Ridge Garden, Sha Tin Town Lot No. 352 Shop Medium-term
No. 6 Kam Ying Road, Ma On Shan, Shatin, YO HE T ER 35288 e FRER
New Territories
L
WHFERILIRIEE 655
EEEE—EF14%H
Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on the Ground Floor, Tsuen Wan Town Lot No. 223 Shop Medium-term
Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 and 173 Castle Peak Road T ER22358 [k FRER
and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories
HFREEELELT - 171 R 17358
ERAE
R IR A 47-51 57
T 3SR BB
Shop C of Portion B on the Basement, Argyle Centre, Phase |, Kowloon Inland Lot No. 1262 Shop Medium-term
No. 688 Nathan Road and No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, NEEAHLER 126255 [k FRER
Kowloon
-
RE /2 RS 688 5% M e B E1H 65 9%
Rt AR/ h2E — HAth B B 240 C 4
Shop A on the Ground Floor, Admiralty Centre, Inland Lot No. 8423 Shop Long-term
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong A ith £ 842355 [k RHE

EBEREISH
BEROT AR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

FFEHEEE

Consolidated Income Statements

For the five years ended 31 March 2014

meBEk
BE—Z—NFE=A=+—HLEEEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-MFE Z—EB-=F =ZEB--F EB——F ZE-ZF
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(E%))
Revenue g 6,990,463 6,394,089 5,956,438 5,332,639 4,882,668
Cost of sales SHERAR (5,971,366) (5,485,896) (5,142,737) (4,528,864) (4,050,776)
Gross profit EX 1,019,097 908,193 813,701 803,775 831,892
Other gains, net HiE s 19,099 61,319 62,883 89,546 49,428
Administrative expenses THRER (358,683) (329,003) (317,950) (283,706) (274,725)
Operating profit EIERF 679,513 640,509 558,634 609,615 606,595
Finance income B R U A 12,989 10,966 9,016 7,298 8,262
Share of profit/(loss) of L E AT
associates =R (E5E) 213 (4,243) 310 2,645 2,330
Share of (loss)/profit of EREE AT
joint ventures (E518) %7 (3,958) (5,987) (333) (67) 311
Profit before income tax BB AR R 688,757 641,245 567,627 619,491 617,498
Income tax expenses FEHEHR (106,677) (100,282) (90,616) (96,903) (98,944)
Profit for the year REE R 582,080 540,963 477,011 522,588 518,554
Allocated as: A :
Profit/(loss) attributable to e RS AL
non-controlling interests w=R(E518) 884 1,000 (318) (6) (503)
Profit attributable to equity AATRERFEA
holders of the Company FERER 581,196 539,963 477,329 522,594 519,057
Dividends RE 393,189 517,204 353,286 490,747 347,208
Basic earnings per share BREREF HK$1.01 HK$0.94 HK$0.84 HK$0.93 HK$0.93
1.01& 7T 0.9438 T 0.847%& 7T 0.937&7T 0.93787T
Diluted earnings per share BREERER HK$1.00 HK$0.94 HK$0.84 HK$0.92 HK$0.92
1.0058 7T 0.9438 7T 0.8478 7T 0.927&7T 0.927& 7t

Note: The Group adopted HKAS19 (revised 2011) for the year Mk :

ended 31 March 2014. The summary for the year ended
31 March 2013 has been restated as required. The summary
for the years ended 31 March 2012, 31 March 2011,

31 March 2010 have not been restated.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
hFENBHUE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position A B AR R &

As at 31 March, R=BA=+—8H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—EF-mE  =FT-= —F-=F =F-——F Z=2-2F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets FREEE
Leasehold land and HELHR
land use rights T fF AR 91,380 94,411 97,143 67,810 69,058
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - MERRE 1,720,324 1,672,430 1,482,562 1,175,764 1,033,870
Investment properties REYE 439,600 385,000 326,200 316,200 266,100
Intangible assets BEEE 48,417 111,579 172,652 190,676 190,848
Investments in associates REE QT RE 1,190 11,780 18,505 21,271 20,578
Investments in joint ventures ~ REELQATRE 19,772 24,372 11,060 4240 4118
Deferred income tax assets EEFRIBEE 26,562 24,320 18,075 14,160 6,832
Retirement benefit assets BReRBAEE - - - 14,361 20,412
Available-for-sale e
financial assets SRIEE 522,516 451,087 417,667 324,052 351,695
Non-current prepayments IERENFEIFIE
and deposits k& 248,652 268,633 229,505 228,369 197,791
Financial assets at fairvalue  IRAFEIIAEZEE
through profit or loss ZERMEE 7,777 33,094 14,745 38,392 30,294

3,126,190 3,076,706 2,788,114 2,395,295 2,191,596

Current assets MENEE
Inventories =FE 211,759 204,548 172,099 170,986 110,370
Trade and other receivables EERHEMEWERE 79,660 147,671 73,889 54,333 56,149
Prepayments and deposits EAREREZSE 106,921 124,966 99,070 101,534 105,773
Financial assets at fairvalue  RAFEIIAEBRER
through profit or loss ZEMEE 8,067 56,077 59,135 65,902 69,954
Bank deposits with maturity BE=EAZEA
over three months BERITIERK 31,010 31,076 31,033 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEEER 1,004,093 772,694 854,417 993,333 968,559
1,441,510 1,337,032 1,285,643 1,386,088 1,310,805
Total assets HWEE 4,567,700 4,413,738 4,073,757 3,781,383 3,502,401
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Five-Year Financial Summary

FFEHEEE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(Continued)

mE BRI R ()

As at 31 March, MR=B=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE —BR-=F ZEB-Zf CZE-—-% CZE2-EfF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FiET FET
Liabilities =l
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities IEZERIEEE 30,458 31,616 33,208 35,832 39,284
Provision for long service RERISSBE
payments 22,850 19,680 9,872 14,249 8,255
Retirement benefit liabilities  ERIRETBRERE 7,483 25,670 12,328 - -
60,791 76,966 55,408 50,081 47,539
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables EEEMIRE 208,844 179,103 171,250 172,413 147,969
Other creditors and accrued HihfESIRIER
liabilities EFTEA 534,867 563,216 535,286 440,361 399,603
Current income tax liabilities ~ BNERF{IEEE 30,643 42,808 32,731 25,824 35,271
774,354 785,127 739,267 638,598 582,843
Total liabilities weE 835,145 862,093 794,675 688,679 630,382
Equity B
Capital and reserve attributable ZR2 T REFE A
to the equity holders of AR AR 1
the Company
Share capital [ 57,730 57,407 56,956 56,313 55,887
Other reserves Hib 1,286,806 1,164,384 1,057,413 836,259 775,767
Retained earnings REER 2,384,864 2,327,583 2,163,442 2,198,543 2,038,770
3,729,400 3,549,374 3,277,811 3,091,115 2,870,424
Non-controlling interests FEIEFI MRS 3,155 2,271 1,271 1,589 1,595
Total equity fRREZA %R 3,732,555 3,551,645 3,279,082 3,092,704 2,872,019
Total equity and liabilities BEREEEEE 4,567,700 4,413,738 4,073,757 3,781,383 3,502,401
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